
 

 

 

Public Facilities and Safety Committee 

Beaufort County, SC 
Council Chambers, Administration Building Beaufort County Government Robert Smalls 

Complex 100 Ribaut Road, Beaufort 

Monday, June 24, 2024 
3:00 PM 

AGENDA 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS: 
         BLOGAN CUNNINGHAM, CHAIRMAN                           DAVID P. BARTHOLOMEW, VICE-CHAIRMAN 
                  THOMAS REITZ                                                             PAULA BROWN                                                                                                     
                  ANNA MARIA TABERNIK                                            JOSEPH F. PASSIMENT, EX-OFFICIO 
 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

3. PUBLIC NOTIFICATION OF THIS MEETING HAS BEEN PUBLISHED, POSTED, AND DISTRIBUTED IN 
COMPLIANCE WITH THE SOUTH CAROLINA FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES - May 28, 2024 

6. CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD- 15 MINUTES TOTAL  

Anyone who wishes to speak during the Citizen Comment portion of the meeting will limit their 
comments and speak no longer than three (3) minutes. Speakers will address Council in a respectful 
manner appropriate to the decorum of the meeting, refraining from the use of profane, abusive, or 
obscene language. In accordance with Beaufort County's Rules and Procedures, giving of a speaker's 
time to another is not allowed. 

7. ASSISTANT COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REPORT- Jared Fralix 
 

AGENDA ITEMS 
 

 

8. RECOMMEND APPROVAL TO COUNCIL OF A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE INTERIM COUNTY 
ADMINISTRATOR TO ACCEPT AN INFRASTRUCTURE PLANNING GRANT FROM THE SOUTH CAROLINA 
RURAL INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORITY (RIA) FOR THE ALLJOY COMMUNITY ($187,500.00) - Jared Fralix, 
P.E., Assistant County Administrator – Infrastructure  

9. RECOMMEND APPROVAL TO COUNCIL OF A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE INTERIM COUNTY 
ADMINISTRATOR TO PURSUE CONDEMNATION ON PARCEL R200 011 000 0007 0000 ASSOCIATED WITH 

1



County Council Agenda – Beaufort County, SC 

SHEPPARD ROAD, CAUSEY WAY AND DOCK BUILDERS DRIVE ON LADY’S ISLAND (FISCAL IMPACT: $10,000 
& associated legal fees for condemnation funded by 1000-30-1301-51160) - Jared Fralix, P.E., Assistant 
County Administrator, Infrastructure 

10. RECOMMEND APPROVAL TO COUNCIL OF A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT FAA BIL AIRPORT TERMINAL 
PROGRAM GRANT IN THE AMOUNT OF $5,000,000 FOR HXD TERMINAL IMPROVEMENTS - CONTINGENT 
UPON FINAL FAA OFFER (FISCAL IMPACT: The BIL ATP program provides 95% of the project funding 
($5,000,000) of the funding, and airport operations will fund 5% $263,158 - Grant Expenditures - GL Code 
5402-90-0000-57130) - Jon Rembold; Airports Director 

11. RECOMMEND APPROVAL TO COUNCIL OF A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT FAA GRANT FUNDING FOR THE 
HILTON HEAD ISLAND AIRPORT (HXD) TAXIWAY F REHABILITATION PROJECT- CONTINGENT UPON FINAL 
FAA OFFER  (FISCAL IMPACT: The FAA will provide 90% ($2,993,835) of the total project cost, and the 
SCAC will fund 10% ($332,648). Grant Expenditures - GL Code 5402-90-0000-57130) - Jon Rembold; 
Airports Director 

12. RECOMMEND APPROVAL TO COUNCIL OF A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT FAA GRANT IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$137,209 FOR HXD AIRFIELD DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS – DESIGN AND BIDDING CONTINGENT UPON 
FINAL FAA OFFER (FISCAL IMPACT: The FAA will provide 90% $137,209 of the funding, and airport 
operations will fund 10% ($15,245). FAA funds for this project are already budgeted in the FAA account 
- Grant Expenditures - GL Code 5402-90-0000-57130) - Jon Rembold; Airports Director 

13. RECOMMEND APPROVAL TO AWARD CONSOR ENGINEERS, LLC THE DESIGN CONTRACT FOR PAUKIE 
ISLAND CAUSEWAY CULVERT REPLACEMENT (FISCAL IMPACT: The contract fee is $162,610.85. Staff 
recommends a 15% contingency of $24,391.63, bringing the project budget to $187,002.48. The funding 
for this project is Road Use Fee (TAG) Professional Services  – account 2342-30-0000-51160 with a 
balance of $1,357,820.73) - Bryan Bauer, PE – Interim Director of Engineering 

14. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF A SIGNAL MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT BETWEEN BEAUFORT COUNTY AND 
SCDOT (FISCAL IMPACT: The SMA allows for reimbursement from SCDOT to Beaufort County, not 
exceeding $197,700 annually) - Bryan Bauer, PE – Interim Director of Engineering  

15. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF A CONTRACT AWARD TO BEAUFORT METAL OF BEAUFORT, SC FOR RFP 
#032624 SCRAP AND WHITE GOODS, PROCESSING, RECYCLING, AND MARKETING ($0.00) 

16. ADJOURNMENT 

TO WATCH COMMITTEE OR COUNTY COUNCIL MEETINGS OR FOR A COMPLETE LIST OF AGENDAS AND 
BACKUP PACKAGES, PLEASE VISIT: 

https://beaufortcountysc.gov/council/council-committee-meetings/index.html 

2

https://beaufortcountysc.gov/council/council-committee-meetings/index.html


 

 

 

Public Facilities and Safety Committee 

Beaufort County, SC 
Council Chambers, Administration Building Beaufort County Government Robert Smalls 

Complex 100 Ribaut Road, Beaufort 

Tuesday, May 28, 2024 
3:00 PM 

MINUTES 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS: 
         BLOGAN CUNNINGHAM, CHAIRMAN                           DAVID P. BARTHOLOMEW, VICE-CHAIRMAN 
                  THOMAS REITZ                                                             PAULA BROWN                                                                                                     
                  ANNA MARIA TABERNIK                                            JOSEPH F. PASSIMENT, EX-OFFICIO 
 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

Committee Chairman Cunningham called the meeting to order at 3:00 pm. 

 
PRESENT 
Committee Chairman Logan Cunningham 
Committee Vice-Chairman David P. Bartholomew (arrived late at 3:42) 
Council Member Paula Brown 
Council Member Anna Maria Tabernik 
Council Member Gerald Dawson 
Council Member York Glover 
Council Member Alice Howard 
Council Member Thomas Reitz 
Council Member Mark Lawson (arrived late at 3:31) 
Chairman Joseph Passiment (arrived late at 4:14) 

 
ABSENT 
Vice-Chairman Lawrence McElynn 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Committee Chairman Cunningham led the Pledge of Allegiance 

 

3

Item 5.



Public Facilities & Safety Committee Minutes – Beaufort County, SC 

3. PUBLIC NOTIFICATION OF THIS MEETING HAS BEEN PUBLISHED, POSTED, AND DISTRIBUTED IN 
COMPLIANCE WITH THE SOUTH CAROLINA FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT 

Committee Chairman Cunningham noted that the public notification of the meeting has been published, 
posted, and distributed in compliance with the South Carolina Freedom of Information Act. 
 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Tabernik, Seconded by Council Member Brown to approve the 
agenda.  

The Vote: The motion was approved without objection. 
 

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES- April 22, 2024 

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Tabernik, Seconded by Council Member Brown, to approve the 
minutes from April 22, 2024. 

The Vote: The motion was approved without objection. 
 

6. CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD- 15 MINUTES TOTAL  

Anyone who wishes to speak during the Citizen Comment portion of the meeting will limit their 
comments and speak no longer than three (3) minutes. Speakers will address Council in a respectful 
manner appropriate to the decorum of the meeting, refraining from the use of profane, abusive, or 
obscene language. In accordance with Beaufort County's Rules and Procedures, giving of a speaker's 
time to another is not allowed. 

Citizen comment was taken. 

Mike Hagen- Sales Tax Referendum 

 
Please watch the video stream available on the County's website to view comments. 
https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/306391?ts=78 

 

7. ASSISTANT COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REPORT- Jared Fralix 

Jared Fralix- Employee Updates  

Tallulah McGee- Update on Animal Shelter 

 
Please watch the video stream available on the County's website to view updates. 
https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/306391?ts=180 

 
 

AGENDA ITEMS 
 

 

8. UPDATE PRESENTATION ON WIMBEE CREEK FISHING PIER - Bill Barna, McSweeney Engineers 

McSweeney Engineers conducted inspections of the Wimbee Creek Fishing Pier in 2018 and 2019. As part 
of the new inspection reports, McSweeney provided a condition evaluation and repair recommendations 
for the pier. As requested by the County in 2020, they analyzed six (6) repair and demolition alternatives 

4

Item 5.

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/306391?ts=78
https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/306391?ts=180


Public Facilities & Safety Committee Minutes – Beaufort County, SC 

and probate costs. Repairs have not been performed, but based on recommendations in the 2019 report, 
spans 7 & 8 were closed.  

The recommendation is to update demolition plans and specifications. Demolish pier. Explore options for 
site improvements. 

 
Please watch the video stream available on the County's website to view the full discussion and update. 
https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/306391?ts=1048 

 

9. RECOMMEND APPROVAL TO COUNCIL OF A RESOLUTION ADOPTING A PARKS AND RECREATION MASTER 
PLAN FOR BEAUFORT COUNTY’S ACTIVE PARKS AND RECREATION FACILITIES - Dale Butts, Assistant County 
Administrator 

Eric Brown, Parks and Recreation Director, introduced Wood & Partners, who presented a preliminary 
draft of their findings, comprising the Parks & Recreation Master Plan, to the Committee last year. This 
presentation is the final product.  

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Howard, Seconded by Council Member Brown, to Recommend 
Approval to Council of a Resolution Adopting a Parks and Recreation Master Plan for Beaufort County's 
Active Parks and Recreation Facilities.  

The Vote: The motion was approved without objection. 

Please watch the video stream available on the County's website to view the full discussion. 
https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/306391?ts=2077 

 

10. RECOMMEND APPROVAL TO COUNCIL OF AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE INTERIM COUNTY 
ADMINISTRATOR TO EXECUTE THE NECESSARY DOCUMENTS TO CONVEY UTILITY EASEMENT # 904091 
ENCUMBERING PROPERTY OWNED BY BEAUFORT COUNTY - Jared Fralix, P.E., Assistant County 
Administrator, Infrastructure 

Dominion Energy South Carolina, Inc. is requesting a 10' utility easement on County Parcel R100 031 000 
00098 0000 to facilitate improvements/upgrades to main lines in the Shell Point Area. 

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Howard, Seconded by Committee Vice- Chair Bartholomew, to 
Recommend Approval to Council of an Ordinance Authorizing the Interim County Administrator to 
Execute the Necessary Documents to Convey Utility Easement #904091 Encumbering Property Owned by 
Beaufort County. 

The Vote: The motion was approved without objection. 

 
Please watch the video stream available on the County's website to view the full discussion. 
https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/306391?ts=4618 

 

11. RECOMMEND APPROVAL TO COUNCIL OF AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ACCEPTANCE OF DRAINAGE 
EASEMENTS ASSOCIATED WITH DRAINAGE SYSTEMS LOCATED IN THE SHELL POINT AREA ON PARCELS 
R100 033 00A 0350 0000 & R100 033 00A 0116 0000 (FISCAL IMPACT:  Work to be included in Stormwater 
Maintenance account # 5025-90-9020-51170) - Jared Fralix, P.E., Assistant County Administrator, 
Infrastructure 

5

Item 5.

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/306391?ts=1048
https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/306391?ts=2077
https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/306391?ts=4618


Public Facilities & Safety Committee Minutes – Beaufort County, SC 

Resolution 2022/63 outlines an updated process for drainage easement requests. Beaufort County legal 
department has recently determined that drainage easement conveyance and acceptance should be 
approved through a County Council Ordinance.  

Beaufort County Stormwater Department is working on drainage issues in the Shell Point area. Parcels 
R100 033 00A 0350 0000 and R100 033 00A 0116 0000 will help convey drainage to reduce water backup 
on the parcels and surrounding properties. 

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Howard, Seconded by Committee Vice-Chair Bartholomew, to 
Recommend Approval to Council of an Ordinance Authorizing the Acceptance of Drainage Easements 
Associated with Drainage Systems Located in the Shell Point Area on Parcels R100 033 00A 0350 0000 & 
R100 033 00A 0116 0000. 

The Vote: The motion was approved without objection.  

 
Please watch the video stream available on the County's website to view the full discussion. 
https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/306391?ts=4647 

 

12. RECOMMEND APPROVAL TO COUNCIL OF AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CONVEYANCE OF A 
PORTION OF PARCELS R123-018-000-0483-0000 AND R200-018-000-0257-0000 OF REAL PROPERTY FROM 
BEAUFORT COUNTY TO THE CITY OF BEAUFORT ASSOCIATED WITH US 21 AIRPORT AREA AND FRONTAGE 
ROAD IMPROVEMENTS - Jared Fralix, P.E., Assistant County Administrator, Infrastructure 

Included in the November 2018 Transportation Sales and Use Tax Referendum approved by voters was a 
list of projects to include the Lady's Island Corridor Study designed to improve safety and capacity. Moving 
forward with improvements on US21 around the airport, Beaufort County and the City of Beaufort entered 
into an IGA on March 19, 2020, and 1st Amendment dated September 16, 2021, which states that upon 
completion of the project, the County will not retain any interest in the roadway improvements and the 
City will maintain the facility as a city street.  

The County is nearing completion of the US21 Airport area and Frontage Road project, which is referred 
to as the "Lost Island Connectivity Project," and is initiating the conveyance of the right of way obtained 
by the County to the City as agreed in the referenced IGA. 

Motion: It was moved by Committee Vice-Chair Bartholomew, Seconded by Council Member Glover, to 
Recommend Approval to Council of an Ordinance Authorizing the Conveyance of a Portion of Parcels 
R123-018-000-0483-0000 and R200-018-000-0257-0000 of Real Property from Beaufort County to the City 
of Beaufort Associated with US 21 Airport Area and Frontage Road Improvements. 

The Vote: The motion was approved without objection. 

 
Please watch the video stream available on the County's website to view the full discussion. 
https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/306391?ts=4705 

 

13. RECOMMEND APPROVAL TO COUNCIL OF AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE INTERIM COUNTY 
ADMINISTRATOR TO EXECUTE ANY AND ALL NECESSARY DOCUMENTS FOR THE ACCEPTANCE OF 
PROPERTIES ENCUMBERING THE ROAD RIGHT OF WAY FOR PRIVATE SECTION OF SCHEPER LANE - Jared 
Fralix, P.E., Assistant County Administrator, Infrastructure  

Property owners on a private section of Scheper Lane petitioned the County to include the road in its 
inventory, and the County Council approved this acceptance on March 11, 2024. The owners wish to 
convey their interest in road right of way to Beaufort County on the portion of the road that the County 

6

Item 5.

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/306391?ts=4647
https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/306391?ts=4705


Public Facilities & Safety Committee Minutes – Beaufort County, SC 

accepted into the County Road inventory. Staff recommends approval of an Ordinance authorizing the 
Interim County Administrator to execute all necessary documents to accept properties encumbering the 
road right of way for the private section of Scheper Lane.  

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Howard, Seconded by Council Member Glover, to Recommend 
Approval to Council of an Ordinance Authorizing the Interim County Administrator to Execute Any and All 
Necessary Documents for the Acceptance of Properties Encumbering the Road Right of Way for Private 
Section of Scheper Lane.  

The Vote: The motion was approved without objection. 

 
Please watch the video stream available on the County's website to view the full discussion. 
https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/306391?ts=4773 

 

14. RECOMMEND APPROVAL TO COUNCIL TO AWARD A CONTRACT TO COASTAL AIR TECHNOLOGIES FOR IFB 
#050724 BEAUFORT COUNTY DISABILITIES AND SPECIAL NEEDS OFFICE HVAC REPLACEMENT (FISCAL 
IMPACT: $$205,590.00. Funding comes from the Capital Improvements fund, Account #1040-80-1310-
54420. Current account balance is $2,005,987.74 as of May 14, 2024) - Eric Larson, PE, Director, Capital 
Projects  

Beaufort County requested bids for the Beaufort County Disabilities and Special Needs Office HVAC 
replacement on May 7, 2024. One bidder submitted a bid, which was received from Coastal Air 
Technologies at a cost of $186,900.00. Staff reviewed the detailed bid submittal and found the bid to be 
responsive and the prices to be fair and reasonable. 

The Disabilities and Special Needs Office HVAC Replacement project includes replacing the existing 
geothermal HVAC system, which is beyond its useful service life and has been prone to backdowns in 
recent years. The new system will use more modern equipment. The total funds requested are the fixed 
bid amount of $186,900 plus a 10% contingency ($18,690) for unforeseen conditions. Therefore, the total 
amount requested is $205,590.00. 

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Tabernik, Seconded by Council Member Glover, to Recommend 
Approval to Council to Award a Contract to Coastal Air Technologies for IFB #050724 Beaufort County 
Disabilities and Special Needs Office HVAC Replacement. 

The Vote: The motion was approved without objection.  

 
Please watch the video stream available on the County's website to view the full discussion. 
https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/306391?ts=4882 

 

15. DISCUSSION OF POSSIBLE AMENDMENTS TO THE PROPOSED 2024 TRANSPORTATION SALES AND USE 
TAX ORDINANCE AND REFERENDUM.  

Jared Fralix, Assistant County Administrator, Infrastructure, introduced the discussion of possible 
amendments to the proposed 2024 Transportation and Sales Tax Ordinance and Referendum.   

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Howard, Seconded by Council Member Dawson, to schedule a 
special called meeting for Public Facilities and Safety to discuss the proposed 2024 Transportation Sales 
and Use Tax Ordinance and Referendum.  

The motion was rescinded.  

7

Item 5.

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/306391?ts=4773
https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/306391?ts=4882


Public Facilities & Safety Committee Minutes – Beaufort County, SC 

Due to time constraints, the item will be fully heard and discussed at a special meeting of the Public 
Facilities and Safety Committee, the date of which has not yet been determined. 

Please watch the video stream available on the County's website to view the full discussion. 
https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/306391?ts=5082 

 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION  
 

 

16. PURSUANT TO S. C. CODE §30-4-70(a)(2): RECEIPT OF LEGAL ADVICE WHERE THE LEGAL ADVICE RELATES 
TO MATTERS COVERED BY THE ATTORNEY-CLIENT PRIVILEGE (FY25 BUDGET ORDINANCE)  

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Tabernik, Seconded by Committee Vice-Chair Bartholomew, to 
go into Executive Session.  

The Vote: The motion was approved without objection 

4:49 pm – 5:04 pm 
 

 END OF EXECUTIVE SESSION  
 

17. MATTERS ARISING OUT OF EXECUTIVE SESSION  

There were no matters arising out of the Executive Session 

 

18. ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting adjourned at 5:04 pm  

TO WATCH COMMITTEE OR COUNTY COUNCIL MEETINGS OR FOR A COMPLETE LIST OF AGENDAS AND 
BACKUP PACKAGES, PLEASE VISIT: 

https://beaufortcountysc.gov/council/council-committee-meetings/index.html 

 

 

Ratified:   

 

8

Item 5.

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/306391?ts=5082
https://beaufortcountysc.gov/council/council-committee-meetings/index.html


BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE INTERIM COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR TO 
ACCEPT AN INFRASTRUCTURE PLANNING GRANT FROM THE SOUTH CAROLINA RURAL INFRASTRUCTURE 
AUTHORITY (RIA) FOR $187,500.00  

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Public Facilities and Safety Committee Meeting June 24th, 2024  

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jared Fralix, P.E., Assistant County Administrator – Infrastructure (5 minutes) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

On March 7th, 2024 Beaufort County staff applied for South Carolina RIA Infrastructure Planning grant funds to 
perform a stormwater drainage infrastructure study for an area in southern Beaufort County referred to as 
Alljoy.  

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

The RIA funds for Alljoy will be used to perform a comprehensive drainage study of stormwater drainage 
infrastructure in the Alljoy area. This study will be used to provide information on existing flooding conditions 
and provide solutions for the County to implement drainage improvements or retrofits to the stormwater 
infrastructure system.  

FISCAL IMPACT:  

The County will be responsible for a 25% match. This equates to $62,500.00 and was budgeted for in FY25 
from account code 5025-90-9020-54420.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends approval of a resolution authorizing the Interim County Administrator to accept an 
Infrastructure Planning Grant award from the South Carolina Rural Infrastructure Authority for $187,500. 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve /deny/amend a resolution authorizing the Interim County Administrator to accept an 
Infrastructure Planning Grant award from the South Carolina Rural Infrastructure Authority for $187,500. 

 

(Next Step – Move forward to County Council for Approval).  

 

9

Item 8.



RESOLUTION 2024 /__ 

 

A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT THE INTRASTRUCTURE PLANNING GRANT FROM THE 

SOUTH CAROLINA RURAL INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORITY FOR THE AMOUNT OF 

$187,500 FOR THE BEAUFORT COUNTY ALLJOY DRAINAGE STUDY 

 

WHEREAS Beaufort County Stormwater Department applied for funding to perform a drainage 

study in southern Beaufort County on March 8th, 2024 for the amount of $250,000; and  

  

WHEREAS Beaufort County Stormwater was awarded $187,500  from the South Carolina Rural 

Infrastructure Authority, with a $62,500 match from the County; and  

 

WHEREAS Beaufort County will execute the grant’s requirements during the duration of the 

project while completing all applicable reporting. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, THAT THE COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT 

COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA hereby approves the acceptance of the Infrastructure Planning Grant 

from the South Carolina Rural Infrastructure Authority for the amount of $187,500 for the Beaufort County 

Alljoy Drainage Study project. 

 

Adopted this ____ day of ____________, 2024. 

 

 

      COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY 

 

 

      BY:        

             Joseph Passiment, Chairman 

  

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

     

Sarah W. Brock, Clerk to Council 

10

Item 8.



11

Item 8.



12

Item 8.



13

Item 8.



14

Item 8.



15

Item 8.



16

Item 8.



17

Item 8.



18

Item 8.



19

Item 8.



20

Item 8.



21

Item 8.



22

Item 8.



23

Item 8.



24

Item 8.



AL
LJO

Y R
D

ULMER RD

SH
AD

 AV
E

CO
NF

ED
ER

AT
E A

VE

MY
RT

LE 
ISL

AN
D R

D

FAIRFAX ST

MARTHA LN

GARNETT ST

BRUNSON ST

LURAY ST
ANNS AVE

THO
MA

S L
AW

TO
N D

R

OY
ST

ER
 ST

RIV
ER

 OA
KS

 DR

TRO
UT 

ST

TILLMAN ST

ALLENDALE ST

MU
LLE

T S
T

SCOTIA ST

AM
BL

EW
OO

D A
VE

FOREMAN HILL RD

1ST ST

2ND ST

PALMETTO BEACH DR

CRYSTAL BEACH LN

PA
LM

ET
TO

 AV
E

BLA
CK

FIS
H S

T

CAROLYN LN

NANNY COVE RD

BENTON FIELD RD
ES

TIL
L B

EA
CH

 CI
R

CA
ST

LE 
PO

INT
 RD

CR
OA

KE
R S

T

RIV
ER

 TR
EE

 CI
R

MINUTE
MAN

DR

FLOUNDER ST

BASS ST

FIS
HE

RM
AN

 LN

RIVER OAKS CIR

ELMWOOD AVE

CRYSTAL BEACH CIR

PALMETTO BEACH LN

BELLWOOD AVE

JENNA BILL RD

FAIRWOOD AVE

KIRKS BLUFF RD

ULM
ER

 DR

CRESTWOOD AVE

SAILORS CHOICE

WHITING ST

SHEEPSHEAD ST

MA
Y R

IVE
R C

T

NANNY COVE CT

NANNY CREEK LN

ESTILL BEACH LN

DR
UM

 ST

NORTH STAR LN

ULMER RD

: 350 0 350 700 1,050 1,400175
Feet

Created July 22, 2022

Prepared by Beaufort County GIS Department

Southern Beaufort County
Alljoy Area

Legend
Drainage

River
Creek/Stream
River/Creek/Marsh Bank
Channel (fka Outfall)
Channel Pipe
Roadside
Roadside Pipe
Road Pipe
Crossline Pipe
Driveway Pipe
Lateral
Lateral Pipe
Access Pipe
Bleeder Pipe

Roads
All Others
COUNTY
STATE
PRIVATE

Easements
Easements

Parcel Lines
Parcel Lines

25

Item 8.



4

5

6
7

8

9

3.5

11

10

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21
22

23
24

25

26

3

15

16

19

19

10

21

16

18

12

18

13

17

10

21

16

21

6

19

9

14

16

10

20

15

19

16

15

20

18

18

21

21

17

19

14

15

10

6

17

7

6

12

21

18

19

18

7

7

17

12

18

7

16

21

8

15

7

8

16

10

14

15

21

18

18

16

21

15

7

14

21

20

15

17

17

13

6

21
19

2220

5

17

14

18

15

19

16

17

10

8

12

7

8

14

4

16

20

16

10

17

16

7

8

17

12

13

18

13

12

21

17

20

17

17

24

24

17

22

21

11

16

6

21

19

16

5

15

6

5

11

6

6

16

19

13
15

11

21

21

16

11

17

16

18

11

19

16

9

6

13

24

17

18

18

13

17

16

19

21

11

9

21

20

16

19

4

18

22

25

21 19

6

19

12

20

17

15

12

20

17

11

15

21

9

17

21

21

16

16

17

10

16

3.5

15
17

18

19

8

13

20

16

9

21

6

19

17

12

8

17

16

15

21

17

9

16

15

21

5

21

13

12

8

18

18

18

22

20

18

18

17

17

17

7

11

18

17

21

14

19

16

6

21

16

14

12

19

20

9

7

13

16

18

6

8

16

15

13

17

18

6

6

15

15

17

22

20

10

13

21

16

19

19

16

19

20 19

13

10

8

12

18

19

16

9

6

14

4

10

13

16

18

15

14

17

12

15

20

21

17

16

18

16

6

17

11

11
13

18

17

9

21

16

18

17

5

18

9

6

16

19

20

17

19

7

14

18

12

4

17

16

11

21

16

10

17

16

19

16

7

14

16
24

15

20

15

16

20

17

17

23

12

20

8

9

19

6

5

18

19
17

9

13

15

13

14

5

16

18

15

16

17

10

19

3.5

5

19

6

21

13

16

17

8

16

14

4

21

18

5

17

15

15

2221

22
21

21

9

16

21

15

20

18

20

15

17

17

19

13

17

18

19

16

14

16

13

18

6

18

17

16

19

17

14

15

15

20

11

17

18
19

19

16

20

19

15

19

6

17

21

7

20

25

16

15

6

10

15

13

7

15

12

20

14

16

10

19

16

17

8

16

21

4

18

15

22

16

17

20

10

17

17

19

10

21

20

9

20

20

11

14
17

7

7

15

15

18

5

15

19

6

10

14

16

16
19

10

12

17

14

16

18

8

19

21

AL
LJO

Y

SH
AD

ULMER

CO
NF

ED
ER

AT
E

MY
RT

LE
 IS

LAN
D

ANNS

FAIRFAX

MARTHA

LURAY

GARNETT

BRUNSON

OY
ST

ER 1ST
TRO

UT

2ND

THO
MAS 

LAW
TO

N

TILLMAN

MU
LLE

T

SCOTIA

ALLENDALE
AM

BL
EW

OO
D

PA
LM

ET
TO

ESTILL BEACH

FOREMAN HILL

PALMETTO BEACH

CAROLYN

BLA
CK

FIS
H

BASS

CR
OA

KE
R

RIV
ER

 TR
EE

FLOUNDER

ELMWOOD

BELLWOOD

RIV
ER

 OA
KS

FIS
HE

RM
AN

FAIRWOOD

JENNA BILL

CRYSTAL BEACH

CA
ST

LE
 PO

INT

NANNY COVE

KIRKS BLUFF

CRESTWOOD

WHITING

SHEEPSHEAD

MA
Y R

IVE
R

SAILORS CHOICE

DR
UM

NANNY CREEK

NORTH STAR

ULMER

400 0 400 800 1,200 1,600200
Feet

µ AlljoyVicinity Map

Created September 29, 2021

Prepared by Beaufort County GIS Department
26

Item 8.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

A Resolution Authorizing the Interim County Administrator to pursue condemnation on parcel R200 011 000 
0007 0000 associated with Sheppard Road, Causey Way and Dock Builders Drive on Lady’s Island. 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Public Facilities & Safety Committee Meeting 6-24-24 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jared Fralix, P.E., Assistant County Administrator, Infrastructure  
(5 Minutes) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

County Council conditionally accepted Sheppard Road Extension from Duncan O’ Quinn on January 27, 1997. 
Mr. O’Quinn met the conditions of acceptance by executing a deed and drainage easement to the County. 
The deed was never recorded and Mr. O’Quinn had been paying taxes on parcel R200 011 000 0007 0000 
until 2019 when he owed $117.47 and the property went to tax sale. The property was purchased at tax Sale 
by Mr. Donald Middleton in October of 2020 for $1,600.  The Treasurer executed a deed to Mr. Middleton on 
January 12, 2022 recorded in Deed Book 4108 at Pages 1625-1627. Portions of Sheppard Road, Causey Way 
and Dock Builders Drive are included in Parcel R200 011 000 0007 0000 which have been identified as County 
Maintained roads. Mr. Middleton approached the Public Works director about purchasing the property. The 
legal department and Public Works director determined it was in the best interest of the County to have the 
property appraised to determine value. The appraised value of $10,000 was offered to Mr. Middlton who has 
not accepted the offer. 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

Due to lack of acceptance of appraised value of $10,000, staff is seeking the legal option of condemnation to 
resolve the ownership issue of parcel R200 011 000 0007 0000. This agenda item was discussed during 
Executive Session of Public Facilities and Safety Committee meeting on August 28, 2023. The item was put on 
hold for further discussion with the property owner. The property owner has been unsuccessful in providing 
an alternate appraisal and suggested a land swap of equal value. Communication with County legal staff has 
determined that no County properties meet the request and recommend moving forward with 
condemnation. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

$10,000 & associated legal fees for condemnation funded by 1000-30-1301-51160 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Approval of condemnation actions to rectify County ownership of parcel R200 011 000 0007 0000 associated 
with Sheppard Road, Causey Way and Dock Builders Drive on Lady’s Island. 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve/deny/amend Resolution authorizing County Administrator to pursue condemnation on 
parcel R200 011 000 0007 0000 associated with Sheppard Road, Causey Way and Dock Builders Drive on 
Lady’s Island 

(Next Step) Move action to County Council for public hearing 

 
27

Item 9.



 

  Parcel R200 011 000 0007 0000      Located on Lady’s Island off Holly Hall RD 

28

Item 9.



Page I of2 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024/ 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE INTERIM COUNTY 

ADMINISTRATOR TO PURSUE CONDEMNATION OF PARCEL 

R200-011-000-0007-0000 ASSOCIATED WITH SHEPPARD ROAD, 

CAUSEY WAY AND DOCK BUILDERS DRIVE ON LADYS ISLAND 

 

WHEREAS, Beaufort County Council conditionally accepted Sheppard 

Road Extension from Duncan O’ Quinn on January 27, 1997.; and 

 

WHEREAS, Mr. O’Quinn met the conditions of acceptance by 

executing a deed and drainage easement to the County. The deed was never 

recorded and Mr. O’Quinn had been paying taxes on parcel R200 011 000 0007 

0000 until 2019 when he owed $117.47 and the property went to tax sale.; and 

 

WHEREAS, the property was purchased at tax Sale by Mr. Donald 

Middleton in October of 2020 for $1,600.00,  The Treasurer executed a deed to 

Mr. Middleton on January 12, 2022 recorded in Deed Book 4108 at Pages 1625-

1627.; and 

 

WHEREAS, Portions of Sheppard Road, Causey Way and Dock 

Builders Drive are included in Parcel R200 011 000 0007 0000 which have been 

identified as County Maintained roads; and 

 

WHEREAS, Mr. Middleton approached the Public Works director about 

purchasing the property. The legal department and Public Works director 

determined it was in the best interest of the County to have the property appraised 

to determine value; and 

 

WHEREAS, the appraised value of $10,000 was offered to Mr. Middlton 

who has not accepted the offer.; and 

 

WHEREAS, Beaufort County Council believes that it is in the best 

interest of its citizens to pursue condemnation on parcel R200 011 000 0007 0000 

associated with Sheppard Road, Causey Way and Dock Builders Drive on Lady’s 

Island. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that Beaufort County 

Council hereby authorizes the Interim County Administrator to pursue 

condemnation on parcel R200 011 000 0007 0000 associated with Sheppard 

Road, Causey Way and Dock Builders Drive on Lady’s Island. 

29

Item 9.



Page I of2 

 

 

 

ADOPTED this _____ day of _______, 2024. 

 

COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY 

 

  

  

 By: ______________________________________ 

   Joseph Passiment, Chairman 

    

 ATTEST: 

___________________________ 

Sarah W. Brock, Clerk to Council 

 
 

30

Item 9.



31

Item 9.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

RECOMMENDATION TO ACCEPT FAA BIL AIRPORT TERMINAL PROGRAM GRANT IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$5,000,000 FOR HXD TERMINAL IMPROVEMENTS - CONTINGENT UPON FINAL FAA OFFER  

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Public Facilities and Safety Committee; June 24, 2024 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jon Rembold; Airports Director 

3 minutes 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

This grant was awarded as part of the 2021 Bipartisan Infrastructure Law (BIL) that provides for competitive 
grants for airport terminal projects.  The funds will allow the project team to expand the first phase of the 
project, currently under construction, adding to the benefits that will be enjoyed by the airport’s customers. 

Beaufort County Airports Board approved the proposed resolution to accept the funding during its regular 
meeting on June 20, 2024.  

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

 
The additional funding provided by the grant enables the airport to deliver more benefit to the customers in 
this initial phase of the terminal improvements project. Some of the key items include: 

 Two additional passenger boarding bridges 

 An additional passenger screening lane at the new TSA checkpoint 

 Increased circulation space in the existing lobby and ticketing areas 

 Renovation of all restrooms on the pre-screening side of the terminal 

 Installation of additional aircraft apron lighting 

 Additional gate area furniture and finishes 
 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

The BIL ATP program provides 95% of the project funding ($5,000,000) of the funding, and airport operations 
will fund 5% ($263,158). 

Grant Expenditures - GL Code 5402-90-0000-57130 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends acceptance of FAA BIL ATP Grant in the amount of $5,000,000 for HXD Terminal 
Improvements – contingent upon final FAA offer  

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve/deny acceptance of FAA BIL ATP Grant in the amount of $5,000,000 for HXD Terminal 
Improvements – contingent upon final FAA offer  

Move forward to Council for Approval on July 8, 2024 

 
32

Item 10.



 
 

RESOLUTION 2024/_____ 

A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT FAA BIPARTISAN INFRASTRUCTURE LAW (BIL) 

AIRPORT TERMINAL PROGRAM (ATP) GRANT FOR THE HILTON HEAD ISLAND 

AIRPORT (HXD) AIRPORT TERMINAL IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 

 WHEREAS, as part of the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law passed in November, 2021, there 

exists competitive grant opportunities to fund airport terminal projects; and 

WHEREAS, the Hilton Head Island submitted a competitive application with the goal of 

securing additional funding for the terminal project at HXD, and received $5 million in funding 

through the BIL ATP program; and 

WHEREAS, the items to be funded with these grant funds were part of the June 2023 

Phase I Terminal Improvements Project bid as alternate items but are not currently funded in the 

construction program; and 

 WHEREAS, the completion of these usable units of work will provide an improved level 

of service for commercial service passengers and enhance safety for aircraft using HXD; and 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that Beaufort County Council, duly 

assembled, does hereby authorize the County Administrator to accept FAA BIL ATP Grant 

Funding for Hilton Head Island Airport (HXD) Terminal Construction Project. 

 

Adopted this ____ day of __________, 2024.  

 

COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY  

 

BY:        

      Joseph Passiment, Chairman 

ATTEST:  

     

Sarah W. Brock, Clerk to Council  

33

Item 10.



OMB Number:  4040-0004 
Expiration Date:  11/30/2025

Application for Federal Assistance SF-424 

*1.  Type of Submission:

Preapplication

Application

Changed/Corrected Application

*2.  Type of Application

New

Continuation

Revision 

* If Revision, select appropriate letter(s):

* Other (Specify)

*3.  Date Received: 4. Applicant Identifier:

5a.  Federal Entity Identifier: *5b.  Federal Award Identifier:

State Use Only: 
6. Date Received by State: 7. State Application Identifier:

8. APPLICANT INFORMATION:

*a.  Legal Name:

*b.  Employer/Taxpayer Identification Number (EIN/TIN): *c.  UEI:

d. Address:

*Street 1:

Street 2:

*City:

County/Parish:

*State: 

*Province:

*Country:

*Zip / Postal Code

e. Organizational Unit:

Department Name: Division Name: 

f. Name and contact information of person to be contacted on matters involving this application:

Prefix: *First Name:

Middle Name: 

*Last Name:

Suffix:

Title: 

 Organizational Affiliation: 

*Telephone Number: Fax Number: 

*Email:

HXD

3-45-0030-XXX-2024

Beaufort County, South Carolina

57-6000311 XFSKWHHQMF58

120 Beach City Road

Hilton Head Island

Beaufort

SC

USA: United States

29926-0000

Department of Airports Hilton Head Island Airport

Mr. Jonathan

P

Rembold

 

Director of Airports

843-255-2952 843-255-9434

jrembold@bcgov.net

34

Item 10.



Application for Federal Assistance SF-424 

*9. Type of Applicant 1: Select Applicant Type:

Type of Applicant 2:  Select Applicant Type: 

Type of Applicant 3:  Select  Applicant Type: 

*Other (Specify)

*10. Name of Federal Agency:

11. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance Number:

CFDA Title:  

*12.  Funding Opportunity Number:

*Title:

13. Competition Identification Number:

Title: 

14. Areas Affected by Project (Cities, Counties, States, etc.):

*15.  Descriptive Title of Applicant’s Project:

Attach supporting documents as specified in agency instructions. 

B: County Government

Pick an applicant type

Pick an applicant type

Federal Aviation Administration

20.106

Airport Improvement Program

BIL ATP

Town of Hilton Head Island, Beaufort County, South Carolina

Terminal Construction

35

Item 10.



Application for Federal Assistance SF-424 

16. Congressional Districts Of:

*a. Applicant: *b. Program/Project:

Attach an additional list of Program/Project Congressional Districts if needed. 

17. Proposed Project:

*a. Start Date: *b. End Date:

18. Estimated Funding ($):

*a.  Federal

*b.  Applicant

*c.  State

*d.  Local

*e.  Other
*f.  Program Income
*g.  TOTAL

. 

*19.  Is Application Subject to Review By State Under Executive Order 12372 Process?

a. This application was made available to the State under the Executive Order 12372 Process for review on

b. Program is subject to E.O. 12372 but has not been selected by the State for review.

c. Program is not covered by E.O. 12372.

*20.  Is the Applicant Delinquent On Any Federal Debt?
Yes No

If “Yes”, explain:

21. *By signing this application, I certify (1) to the statements contained in the list of certifications** and (2) that the statements
herein are true, complete and accurate to the best of my knowledge.  I also provide the required assurances** and agree to comply
with any resulting terms if I accept an award.  I am aware that any false, fictitious, or fraudulent statements or claims may subject
me to criminal, civil, or administrative penalties.  (U. S. Code, Title 218, Section 1001)

** I AGREE

** The list of certifications and assurances, or an internet site where you may obtain this list, is contained in the announcement or 
agency specific instructions. 

Authorized Representative: 

Prefix: *First Name:

Middle Name: 

*Last Name:

Suffix:

*Title:

*Telephone Number: Fax Number: 

* Email:

*Signature of Authorized Representative: *Date Signed:

SC-001 SC-001

08/01/2024 09/30/2025

5000000

263158

0

0

0

0

5263158

Mr. Jonathan

P

Rembold

 

Director of Airports

843-255-2952 843-255-9424

jrembold@bcgov.net

Jon Rembold, C.M. Digitally signed by Jon Rembold, C.M. 
Date: 2024.05.31 10:06:49 -04'00' May 31, 2024 36

Item 10.

JudyElder
Inserted Text
	P	

JudyElder
Inserted Text
	



HILTON HEAD ISLAND AIRPORT (HXD) 
PROGRAM NARRATIVE 

 
3-45-0030-XXX-2024 

BIL ATP 
 
 
As part of the ongoing terminal expansion project at HXD, Beaufort County received $5 million 
in funding through the BIL ATP program. The items below were part of the June 2023 program 
bid as alternate items but are not currently funded in the construction program. These useable 
units of work will be funded by this grant. The costs are shown using a 95 percent BIL ATP funding 
share and a 5 percent airport funding obligation. 
 

DESCRIPTION TOTAL 
Bid Alternate No. 1B - Gate 2 Aircraft Gate Equipment To Include 2A $35,000 
Spare Parts Allowance $1,414,000.00 

Bid Alternate No. 1c - Gate 3 Aircraft Gate Equipment To Include 2A $35,000 
Spare Parts Allowance $1,502,000.00 

Bid Alternate No. 2 - Furniture Allowance $42,361.46 
Bid Alternate No. 3 - Alternate Canopy Entrance $1,121,000.00 
Bid Alternate No. 5 - Seal/Rejuvenate Existing Asphalt Parking Pavement To 
Remain After Demolition-Landside $30,832.00 

Bid Alternate No. 6 - Non-Reflectorized White Pavement Marking Of Existing 
Parking Spaces To Remain In Existing Asphalt Parking Pavement After 
Sealing/Rejuvenating- Landside 

$4,588.50 

Bid Alternate No. 8 - Second Manned Checkpoint Lane $106,000.00 
Bid Alternate No. 12 - 3-Luminaire Led Apron Floodlight Pole With 35-Ft 
Mounting Height, Complete $76,000.00 

Bid Alternate No. 13 - 2-Luminaire Led Apron Floodlight Pole With 35-Ft 
Mounting Height, Complete $76,000.00 

Non-Secure Restrooms Renovation $890,375.93 
TOTAL $5,263,157.89 

 
Estimated Cost: $5,263,157.89 
 
FAA BIL Cost:  $5,000,000.00 
 

Project Total Federal State Local 
BIL ATP $5,263,157.89 $5,000,000.00 $0.00 $263,157.89 

 

37

Item 10.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

RECOMMENDATION TO ACCEPT FAA GRANT IN THE AMOUNT OF $2,993,835 FOR HXD TAXIWAY “F” 
PAVEMENT REHABILITATION – CONSTRUCTION AND CONSTRUCTION ADMIN - CONTINGENT UPON FINAL 
FAA OFFER  

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Public Facilities and Safety Committee; June 24, 2024 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jon Rembold; Airports Director 

3 minutes 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

This grant will fund the Taxiway F Rehabilitation project.  

Beaufort County Airports Board approved the proposed resolution to accept the funding during its regular 
meeting on June 20, 2024.  

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

Taxiway “F” is the commercial airline taxiway at the Hilton Head Island Airport. As such, it is a critical piece of 
the national transportation system, and it plays a crucial role in providing commercial airline service to Hilton 
Head Island and Beaufort County. Pavement maintenance is one of the guarantees the County makes to the 
FAA when accepting grant funds. A recent pavement analysis found that the taxiway needs rehabilitation. 
This project addresses that need and satisfies the FAA requirement. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

The FAA will provide 90% ($2,993,835) of the total project cost, and the SCAC will fund 10% ($332,648). 

Grant Expenditures - GL Code 5402-90-0000-57130 (This line item provides initial funding since all grants are 
reimbursable) 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends acceptance of FAA Grant in the amount of $2,993,835 for HXD Taxiway “F” Pavement 
Rehabilitation – Construction and Construction Admin contingent upon final FAA offer  

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve/deny acceptance of FAA Grant in the amount of $2,993,835 for HXD Taxiway “F” 
Pavement Rehabilitation – Construction and Construction Admin contingent upon final FAA offer  

Move forward to Council for Approval on July 8, 2024  

 

38

Item 11.



 
 

RESOLUTION 2024/_____ 

A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT FAA GRANT FUNDING FOR THE HILTON HEAD 

ISLAND AIRPORT (HXD) TAXIWAY F REHABILITATION PROJECT 

 WHEREAS, the Hilton Head Island Airport Taxiway F rehabilitation is necessary to 

comply with the Federal Grant Sponsor Assurance that requires airfield pavement maintenance; 

and 

WHEREAS, the Taxiway F rehabilitation will provide enhanced safety and service life 

for the commercial airline taxiway at HXD; and 

WHEREAS, the project will include the overlay of the existing taxiway, new pavement 

markings, required edge light adjustments, sediment/erosion control; and 

WHEREAS, this project includes construction and construction administration services 

for the rehabilitation of Taxiway F; and  

  WHEREAS, the total FAA grant is $2,993,835. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that Beaufort County Council, duly 

assembled, does hereby authorize the County Administrator to accept FAA Grant Funding for 

Hilton Head Island Airport (HXD) Taxiway F Rehabilitation project. 

 

Adopted this ____ day of __________, 2024.  

 

COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY  

 

BY:        

      Joseph Passiment, Chairman 

ATTEST:  

     

Sarah W. Brock, Clerk to Council  

39

Item 11.



OMB Number:  4040-0004 
Expiration Date:  11/30/2025

Application for Federal Assistance SF-424 

*1.  Type of Submission:

Preapplication

Application

Changed/Corrected Application

*2.  Type of Application

New

Continuation

Revision 

* If Revision, select appropriate letter(s):

* Other (Specify)

*3.  Date Received: 4. Applicant Identifier:

5a.  Federal Entity Identifier: *5b.  Federal Award Identifier:

State Use Only: 
6. Date Received by State: 7. State Application Identifier:

8. APPLICANT INFORMATION:

*a.  Legal Name:

*b.  Employer/Taxpayer Identification Number (EIN/TIN): *c.  UEI:

d. Address:

*Street 1:

Street 2:

*City:

County/Parish:

*State: 

*Province:

*Country:

*Zip / Postal Code

e. Organizational Unit:

Department Name: Division Name: 

f. Name and contact information of person to be contacted on matters involving this application:

Prefix: *First Name:

Middle Name: 

*Last Name:

Suffix:

Title: 

 Organizational Affiliation: 

*Telephone Number: Fax Number: 

*Email:

HXD

3-45-0030-XXX-2024

Beaufort County, South Carolina

57-6000311

Hilton Head Island

Beaufort

SC

USA: United States

29926-0000

Department of Airports Hilton Head Island Airport

Mr. Jon

Rembold

 

Director of Airports

843-255-2952 843-255-9434

jrembold@bcgov.net

120 Beach City Road

XFSKWHHQMF58

40

Item 11.



Application for Federal Assistance SF-424 

*9. Type of Applicant 1: Select Applicant Type:

Type of Applicant 2:  Select Applicant Type: 

Type of Applicant 3:  Select  Applicant Type: 

*Other (Specify)

*10. Name of Federal Agency:

11. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance Number:

CFDA Title:  

*12.  Funding Opportunity Number:

*Title:

13. Competition Identification Number:

Title: 

14. Areas Affected by Project (Cities, Counties, States, etc.):

*15.  Descriptive Title of Applicant’s Project:

Attach supporting documents as specified in agency instructions. 

Bipartisan Infrastructure Law

Airport Improvement Program

20.106

Federal Aviation Administration

Taxiway F Strengthening (Construction)

B: County Government

Pick an applicant type

Pick an applicant type

41

Item 11.



Application for Federal Assistance SF-424 

16. Congressional Districts Of:

*a. Applicant: *b. Program/Project:

Attach an additional list of Program/Project Congressional Districts if needed. 

17. Proposed Project:

*a. Start Date: *b. End Date:

18. Estimated Funding ($):

*a.  Federal

*b.  Applicant

*c.  State

*d.  Local

*e.  Other
*f.  Program Income
*g.  TOTAL

. 

*19.  Is Application Subject to Review By State Under Executive Order 12372 Process?

a. This application was made available to the State under the Executive Order 12372 Process for review on

b. Program is subject to E.O. 12372 but has not been selected by the State for review.

c. Program is not covered by E.O. 12372.

*20.  Is the Applicant Delinquent On Any Federal Debt?
Yes No

If “Yes”, explain:

21. *By signing this application, I certify (1) to the statements contained in the list of certifications** and (2) that the statements
herein are true, complete and accurate to the best of my knowledge.  I also provide the required assurances** and agree to comply
with any resulting terms if I accept an award.  I am aware that any false, fictitious, or fraudulent statements or claims may subject
me to criminal, civil, or administrative penalties.  (U. S. Code, Title 218, Section 1001)

** I AGREE

** The list of certifications and assurances, or an internet site where you may obtain this list, is contained in the announcement or 
agency specific instructions. 

Authorized Representative: 

Prefix: *First Name:

Middle Name: 

*Last Name:

Suffix:

*Title:

*Telephone Number: Fax Number: 

* Email:

*Signature of Authorized Representative: *Date Signed:

2993835.

0

3326483

332648.

0

0

0

SC-001 SC-001

Mr.

 

Jon

Rembold

Director of Airports

843-255-2952 843-255-9424

jrembold@bcgov.net

Jon Rembold, C.M. Digitally signed by Jon Rembold, C.M. 
Date: 2024.05.22 14:28:59 -04'00' 5/22/2024

03/31/2024 09/30/2025

42

Item 11.



HILTON HEAD ISLAND AIRPORT (HXD) 
PROGRAM NARRATIVE 

3-45-0030-XXX-2024 (BIL)

Taxiway F Rehabilitation (Construction): The project includes construction and construction 
administration services for the rehabilitation of Taxiway F. The project will include the overlay of 
the existing taxiway, grooving of the overlay, new pavement markings, construct paved shoulders 
along the taxiway, required edge light adjustments, sediment/erosion control. 

Construction Administration Services (Talbert, Bright & Ellington) $154,883.00 
Construction (APAC-Atlantic, Inc.) $3,171,600.00 
TOTAL $3,326,483.00 

FAA BIL $2,993,835.00 
SCAC $332,648.00 
Local $0.00 
TOTAL $3,326,483.00 

Estimated Cost: $3,326,483.00 

FAA BIL Cost: $2,993,835.00 

Project Total Federal State Local 
Taxiway F Rehabilitation (Construction) $3,326,483.00 $2,993,835.00 $332,648.00 $0.00 

43

Item 11.



TALBE T BRIGHT & ELLINGTON 
Engineering & Planning Consultants 

May 3, 2023 

Mr. Jon Rembold, C.M. 
Airports Director 
Hilton Head Island Airport 
120 Beach City Road 
Hilton Head Island, SC 29926 

Dear Mr. Rembold, 

RE: Bid Summary and 
Contract Award Recommendation 
Taxiway 'F' Strengthening 
Hilton Head Island Airport 
Hilton Head Island, South Carolina 
TBE Project No. 2119-2101 

A total of one (1) responsive bid was received for the above project on May 3, 2023. A copy of 
the bid tabulation is attached and a summary of the bid results is provided below: 

Bidder 
APAC-Atlantic, Inc., Savannah, GA 

Total Bid Amount 
$3,171,600.00 

We have reviewed the bids received and have found APAC-Atlantic, Inc to be the lowest 
responsive bidder. APAC-Atlantic, Inc. is also proposing to subcontract 5.15% of the total bid 
amount to certified DBE firms, which exceeds the 5.1 % DBE goal established for this project. 

We recommend award of the construction contract for this project to APAC-Atlantic, Inc. for 
the total bid amount of $3,171,600.00. The Engineer's Estimate of Probable Construction Cost 
for this project was $2,883,300.00. 

If you should have any questions concerning this matter, please do not hesitate to contact us. 

Sincerely, 

J. Andrew Shook, P.E.

cc: Mr. Dave Thomas (w /attachment) 

3525 Whitehall Park Drive, Suite 210 Charlotte, NC 28273 Tel: 704.426.6070 

Charlotte, NC Columbia, SC Atlanta, GA 44

Item 11.



BID TABULATION
TAXIWAY 'F' STRENGTHENING
HILTON HEAD ISLAND AIRPORT
TBE PROJECT NO. 2119-2101
MAY 3, 2023

BASE BID
ITEM SPEC
NO. NO. DESCRIPTION QTY UNIT UNIT PRICE EXT. TOTAL UNIT PRICE EXT. TOTAL

1 C-100 CONTRACTOR QUALITY CONTROL PROGRAM (CQCP) 1 LS $95,000.00 $95,000.00 $75,000.00 $75,000.00
2 C-102 TEMPORARY FILTER SOCK 4,000 LF $5.10 $20,400.00 $4.00 $16,000.00
3 C-102 TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE 2 EA $5,000.00 $10,000.00 $3,000.00 $6,000.00
4 C-102 TEMPORARY FILTER SOCK INLET PROTECTION 6 EA $375.00 $2,250.00 $800.00 $4,800.00
5 C-105 MOBILIZATION 1 LS $312,000.00 $312,000.00 $230,800.00 $230,800.00
6 P-101 VARIABLE DEPTH COLD MILLING 5,000 SY $25.00 $125,000.00 $20.00 $100,000.00
7 P-101 CRACK REPAIR - WIDTH 1/4" TO 2" 5,000 LF $3.20 $16,000.00 $4.00 $20,000.00
8 P-101 CRACK REPAIR - WIDTH GREATER THAN 2" 100 LF $250.00 $25,000.00 $60.00 $6,000.00
9 P-152 SHOULDER BUILDUP 11,900 LF $3.00 $35,700.00 $20.00 $238,000.00
10 P-401 BITUMINOUS ASPHALT SURFACE COURSE 5,000 TN $430.00 $2,150,000.00 $235.00 $1,175,000.00
11 P-603 EMULSIFIED ASPHALT TACK COAT 4,100 GAL $6.00 $24,600.00 $4.00 $16,400.00
12 P-610 CONCRETE MANHOLE RIM PROTECTION 7 EA $12,650.00 $88,550.00 $800.00 $5,600.00
13 P-620 TEMPORARY MARKING 6,900 SF $4.50 $31,050.00 $3.00 $20,700.00
14 P-620 PAVEMENT MARKING (REFLECTORIZED) 6,900 SF $2.00 $13,800.00 $5.00 $34,500.00
15 P-620 PAVEMENT MARKING (NON-REFLECTORIZED BLACK) 10,800 SF $0.75 $8,100.00 $5.00 $54,000.00
16 HA HERBICIDE APPLICATION 1 LS $2,575.00 $2,575.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00
17 T-901 TEMPORARY SEEDING (MULCHED) 5 AC $1,695.00 $8,475.00 $1,600.00 $8,000.00
18 T-901 PERMANENT SEEDING (MULCHED) 4 AC $3,180.00 $12,720.00 $2,400.00 $9,600.00
19 T-904 PERMANENT BAHIA SOD 106,000 SF $1.08 $114,480.00 $8.00 $848,000.00
20 L-125 ADJUST EXISTING TAXIWAY LIGHT 33 EA $2,300.00 $75,900.00 $300.00 $9,900.00

TOTAL BASE BID AMOUNT $3,171,600.00 $2,883,300.00

DBE SUBCONTRACTOR AMOUNT $163,300.00 $0.00
DBE PERCENTAGE OF BASE BID AMOUNT 5.15% 0.00%

I HEREBY CERTIFY THIS TABULATION OF BIDS TO BE CORRECT.

5/3/2023
TALBER, BRIGHT & ELLINGTON, INC. DATE

LICENSE NO.:  12050

APAC-ATLANTIC, INC. ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE
SAVANNAH, GA

45

Item 11.



Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc. 
Work Authorization 2119-2302 

1 

HILTON HEAD ISLAND AIRPORT 
HILTON HEAD ISLAND, SOUTH CAROLINA 

WORK AUTHORIZATION 23-02 
May 3, 2023 

PROJECT NO.: TBI NO. 2119-2302 

It is agreed to undertake the following work in accordance with the provisions of our Contract for 
Professional Services.  

Description of Work: The scope of the project is to strengthen Taxiway F. The bid documents 
include a bituminous overlay of the existing pavement. Also included in the project are new 
pavement markings; shoulder buildup along the edge of pavement; sodding the shoulder; required 
edge light elevation adjustments to the new shoulder elevation; and sediment and erosion control 
measures. The approximate limits of the overlay work areas are depicted on the project sketch 
within this Work Authorization. 

Construction Administration (CA), resident project representative (RPR), and quality assurance 
(QA) testing services for the taxiway pavement rehabilitation project will be performed as part of 
this Work Authorization. The CA services will include the following: preparing and distributing 
Released For Construction (RFC) plans and specifications; coordinating and conducting the 
preconstruction meeting; preparing and distributing preconstruction minutes; coordinate project 
schedule; review submittals; attend and conduct bi-weekly construction meetings; review and 
coordinate field changes; review QA test results; process requests for partial payments; attend final 
inspection; prepare the final punch list; develop project record drawings; prepare the final 
Engineer’s Report. TBE will provide a full-time RPR throughout the entirety of the project. This 
RPR will be on-site at all times that the contractor is performing work. 

TBE will assist with/prepare FAA grant fund requests and quarterly status reports for execution 
by the Airport staff. TBE will also assist with/prepare grant closeout documentation required by 
the FAA for this project. 

BASIC SERVICES 

CONSTRUCTION PHASE: 
The construction phase services for this project includes preparation and distribution of contract 
documents and Released For Construction plans and specifications to the Contractor, coordinating 
and conducting the Preconstruction Conference meeting and preparation of minutes, review of 
project schedule submitted by Contractor, coordination and review of Contractor submittals, 
Construction visits/Progress Meetings outlines and meeting minutes, review field change requests 
and related correspondence, prepare and distribute general construction correspondence 
throughout the project, review quality acceptance test results, review and process Contractor pay 
requests, conduct a Final Inspection and prepare/distribute punch list items letter, develop record 

46

Item 11.



Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc. 
Work Authorization 2119-2302 

2 

drawings, assist Hilton Head Island Airport with Grant Closeout and prepare Grant closeout 
paperwork. 

The intended deliverables for these services shall include: 

• PDF versions of Released For Construction (RFC) plans and specifications.
• PDF versions of record drawing plan sheets and specifications.
• PDF version of final Engineer’s Report

SPECIAL SERVICES 

Task 1 – Full-Time Resident Project Representative (RPR) 
A full-time resident project representative will be provided to observe the construction and other 
responsibilities.  

Task 2 – Quality Assurance Testing 
Quality assurance and acceptance testing required by the project specifications for this project will 
be provided. Reports of the tests performed will be provided, along with a summary of all tests 
performed at project closeout. 

Task 3 – A-Built Survey 
An as-built survey for this project will be provided.  

Estimated Time Schedule: Work shall be completed in accordance with the schedule established 
and agreed upon by the Owner and Engineer. 

Cost of Services:  The method of payment shall be in accordance with Article 6 – Compensation 
of the contract. The work shall be performed in accordance with the Master Contract as a lump 
sum of $49,645.00. Special services shall be performed on a not to exceed basis with a budget of 
$105,238.00, which includes reimbursable expenses. For a total of $154,883.00. 

47

Item 11.



Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc. 
Work Authorization 2119-2302 

3 

Agreed as to Scope of Services, Time Schedule and Budget: 

APPROVED: 
BEAUFORT COUNTY 

APPROVED: 
TALBERT, BRIGHT & ELLINGTON, 
INC. 

Vice President 
Title Title: 

Date: Date: 

Witness: Witness: 

48

Item 11.



Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc. 
Work Authorization 2119-2302 

4 49

Item 11.



Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc. 
Work Authorization 2119-2302 

5 50

Item 11.



Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc. 
Work Authorization 2119-2302 

6 51

Item 11.



Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc. 
Work Authorization 2119-2302 

7 52

Item 11.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

RECOMMENDATION TO ACCEPT FAA GRANT IN THE AMOUNT OF $137,209 FOR HXD AIRFIELD DRAINAGE 
IMPROVEMENTS – DESIGN AND BIDDING CONTINGENT UPON FINAL FAA OFFER 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Public Facilities and Safety Committee; June 24, 2024 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jon Rembold; Airports Director 

3 minutes 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

This grant will fund the Airfield Drainage Improvements project design and bidding. This is a time-sensitive, 
mandatory safety project. 

Beaufort County Airports Board approved the proposed resolution to accept the funding during its regular 
meeting on June 20, 2024.  

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

The Hilton Head Island Airport's airport reference code has changed which also changed some of the 
dimensions of protective areas on the field. One of those areas, the runway safety area, was expanded. 
Consequently, several drainage structures that previously were located outside the runway safety area are 
now in that area. As such, they are subject to stricter standards and must be upgraded. This mandatory safety 
project will provide the engineering design and bidding services for the structures. This project is eligible for 
funding through the FAA. Following bidding, a separate construction phase grant will be coordinated with the 
FAA.  

FISCAL IMPACT:  

The FAA will provide 90% ($137,209) of the funding, and airport operations will fund 10% ($15,245). FAA 
funds for this project are already budgeted in the FAA account. 

Grant Expenditures - GL Code 5402-90-0000-57130 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends acceptance of FAA Grant in the amount of $137,209 for HXD Airfield Drainage 
Improvements – Design and Bidding contingent upon final FAA offer 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve/deny acceptance of FAA Grant in the amount of $137,209 for HXD Airfield Drainage 
Improvements – Design and Bidding contingent upon final FAA offer Move forward to Council for Approval on 
July 8, 2024 

 

53

Item 12.



 
 

RESOLUTION 2024/_____ 

A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT FAA GRANT FOR THE HILTON HEAD ISLAND 

AIRPORT (HXD) AIRFIELD DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 

 WHEREAS, the Hilton Head Island Airport's airport reference code has been increased 

from C-II to C-III, and the width of the runway safety area has been increased from 400 feet to 

500 feet; and 

WHEREAS, several drainage structures are located within the redefined runway safety 

area and need to be strengthened to support the design aircraft; and 

WHEREAS, this project involves the design and bidding efforts associated with the 

project; and  

WHEREAS, the FAA has determined the project is justified and is eligible for grant 

funding; and 

  WHEREAS, the grant will be used to fund the design and bidding of the airfield drainage 

improvement project at the Hilton Head Island Airport. The total FAA grant is $137,209. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that Beaufort County Council, duly 

assembled, does hereby authorize the County Administrator to accept FAA Grant for the Hilton 

Head Island Airport (HXD) Airfield Drainage Improvement project. 

 

Adopted this ____ day of __________, 2024.  

 

COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY  

 

BY:        

      Joseph Passiment, Chairman 

ATTEST:  

     

Sarah W. Brock, Clerk to Council  

54

Item 12.



OMB Number:  4040-0004 
Expiration Date:  11/30/2025

Application for Federal Assistance SF-424 

*1.  Type of Submission:

Preapplication

Application

Changed/Corrected Application

*2.  Type of Application

New

Continuation

Revision 

* If Revision, select appropriate letter(s):

* Other (Specify)

*3.  Date Received: 4. Applicant Identifier:

5a.  Federal Entity Identifier: *5b.  Federal Award Identifier:

State Use Only: 
6. Date Received by State: 7. State Application Identifier:

8. APPLICANT INFORMATION:

*a.  Legal Name:

*b.  Employer/Taxpayer Identification Number (EIN/TIN): *c.  UEI:

d. Address:

*Street 1:

Street 2:

*City:

County/Parish:

*State: 

*Province:

*Country:

*Zip / Postal Code

e. Organizational Unit:

Department Name: Division Name: 

f. Name and contact information of person to be contacted on matters involving this application:

Prefix: *First Name:

Middle Name: 

*Last Name:

Suffix:

Title: 

 Organizational Affiliation: 

*Telephone Number: Fax Number: 

*Email:

HXD

3-45-0030-XXX-2024

Beaufort County, South Carolina

57-6000311

Hilton Head Island

Beaufort

SC

USA: United States

29926-0000

Department of Airports Hilton Head Island Airport

Mr. Jonathan

P

Rembold

 

Director of Airports

843-2552952 843-255-9434

jrembold@bcgov.net

120 Beach City Road

XFSKWHHQMF58

55

Item 12.



Application for Federal Assistance SF-424 

*9. Type of Applicant 1: Select Applicant Type:

Type of Applicant 2:  Select Applicant Type: 

Type of Applicant 3:  Select  Applicant Type: 

*Other (Specify)

*10. Name of Federal Agency:

11. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance Number:

CFDA Title:  

*12.  Funding Opportunity Number:

*Title:

13. Competition Identification Number:

Title: 

14. Areas Affected by Project (Cities, Counties, States, etc.):

*15.  Descriptive Title of Applicant’s Project:

Attach supporting documents as specified in agency instructions. 

BIL AIG

Airport Improvement Program

20.106

Federal Aviation Administration

Town of Hilton Head Island, Beaufort County South Carolina

Airfield Drainage (Design and Bidding)

B: County Government

Pick an applicant type

Pick an applicant type

56

Item 12.



Application for Federal Assistance SF-424 

16. Congressional Districts Of:

*a. Applicant: *b. Program/Project:

Attach an additional list of Program/Project Congressional Districts if needed. 

17. Proposed Project:

*a. Start Date: *b. End Date:

18. Estimated Funding ($):

*a.  Federal

*b.  Applicant

*c.  State

*d.  Local

*e.  Other
*f.  Program Income
*g.  TOTAL

. 

*19.  Is Application Subject to Review By State Under Executive Order 12372 Process?

a. This application was made available to the State under the Executive Order 12372 Process for review on

b. Program is subject to E.O. 12372 but has not been selected by the State for review.

c. Program is not covered by E.O. 12372.

*20.  Is the Applicant Delinquent On Any Federal Debt?
Yes No

If “Yes”, explain:

21. *By signing this application, I certify (1) to the statements contained in the list of certifications** and (2) that the statements
herein are true, complete and accurate to the best of my knowledge.  I also provide the required assurances** and agree to comply
with any resulting terms if I accept an award.  I am aware that any false, fictitious, or fraudulent statements or claims may subject
me to criminal, civil, or administrative penalties.  (U. S. Code, Title 218, Section 1001)

** I AGREE

** The list of certifications and assurances, or an internet site where you may obtain this list, is contained in the announcement or 
agency specific instructions. 

Authorized Representative: 

Prefix: *First Name:

Middle Name: 

*Last Name:

Suffix:

*Title:

*Telephone Number: Fax Number: 

* Email:

*Signature of Authorized Representative: *Date Signed:

137209

15245

152454

0

0

0

0

SC-001 SC-001

Mr.

 

Jonathan

P

Rembold

Director of Airports

843-255-2952 843-255-9424

jrembold@bcgov.net

Jon Rembold, C.M. Digitally signed by Jon Rembold, C.M. 
Date: 2024.06.03 10:19:24 -04'00' 6/3/2024

08/01/2024 06/30/2025

57

Item 12.



Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc. 
Work Authorization 2119-2402 

1 

HILTON HEAD ISLAND AIRPORT 
HILTON HEAD ISLAND, SOUTH CAROLINA 

WORK AUTHORIZATION 24-02 
May 23, 2024 

PROJECT NO.: TBE NO. 2119-2402 
 
It is agreed to undertake the following work in accordance with the provisions of our Contract 
for Professional Services.  
 
 
Description of Work: The scope of the project is to strengthen several of the stormwater 
drainage inlet structures within the Runway 3/21 safety area at Hilton Head Island Airport. The 
airport reference code at the Hilton Head Island Airport has been increased from C-II to C-III with 
a corresponding increase in the width of the runway safety area from 400 feet to 500 feet. Several 
drainage structures are now located within the runway safety area that need to be strengthened 
to support the design aircraft. The locations of the drainage structures are depicted on the 
project sketch within this Work Authorization. 
 
The existing inlet structures in question will be analyzed and a retrofit design will be developed 
based on the requirements of A/C 150-5320-6G – Airport Pavement Design and Evaluation,  
Appendix B Design of Structures. The goal of the retrofit will be to strengthen the existing inlet 
structure to safely carry aircraft loading while minimizing the interruption to Aircraft Operations. 
Based on previous experience, structural retrofit is expected to entail the replacement of the 
existing grates and top concrete slab; and the addition of a concrete slab/apron around the 
existing inlet to redistribute the aircraft load around the adjacent soil. Also, the existing drainage 
RCP pipes will be analyzed to ensure they can withstand aircraft loading. 
 
Construction Administration (CA), resident project representative (RPR), and quality assurance 
(QA) testing services for the drainage structure strengthening project will be performed as part 
of this Work Authorization. The CA services will include the following: preparing and distributing 
Released For Construction (RFC) plans and specifications; coordinating and conducting the 
preconstruction meeting; preparing and distributing preconstruction minutes; coordinate project 
schedule; review submittals; attend and conduct bi-weekly construction meetings; review and 
coordinate field changes; review QA test results; process requests for partial payments; attend 
final inspection; prepare the final punch list; develop project record drawings; prepare the final 
Engineer’s Report. TBE will provide a full-time RPR throughout the entirety of the project. This 
RPR will be on-site at all times that the contractor is performing work. 
 
During the implementation phase of the structural retrofit, all work will be performed per A/C 
150/5370-2G – Operational Safety on Airports During Construction. 
 

58

Item 12.



Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc. 
Work Authorization 2119-2402 

2 

TBE will assist with/prepare FAA grant fund requests and quarterly status reports for execution 
by the Airport staff. TBE will also assist with/prepare grant closeout documentation required by 
the FAA for this project. 
 
Professional services to be provided by Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc. (TBE) will include civil and 
survey services required to accomplish the following items: 
 
PHASE 01 – Project Formulation/Development 
 
The preliminary design phase is intended to identify and evaluate alternatives to assure cost 
effective and practical solutions for the work items identified. TBE will complete its evaluation of 
alternatives through contacts with local authorities, field investigations, and a practical design 
approach. The design will take advantage of local knowledge and experience and utilize expertise 
from recent construction projects to design a cost-effective project and ensure competitive 
construction bids. Bids will adhere to the purchasing and procurement policies set forth by 
Beaufort County, as well as local and state laws.  Activities include: 
 

a. Conduct a project kick-off meeting. Attendees will be Beaufort County, FAA, design team, 
and airport tenants. 
 

b. Coordinate with the following agencies for necessary permits related to the proposed 
improvements for this project: 
 
- SCDHEC-OCRM NPDES Permit (to be applied for during design) 
 
- Town of Hilton Head Island Design Plan Review Permit (to support construction 

activity, includes Town departments [Natural Resources, Engineering, Emergency – 
EMS/Fire, Planning, etc.] to be applied for during design) 

 
- FAA and Beaufort County Engineering (plan review, to be performed during design) 
 

c. Prepare a preliminary estimate of probable construction costs and schematic design for 
each element of the project. 
 

d. Prepare an overall construction and safety phasing plan in order to maximize project 
constructability and minimize interference with airport operations. 

 
 
  

59

Item 12.



Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc. 
Work Authorization 2119-2402 

3 

PHASE 04 – Preliminary Design 
 

a. Layout and design of new aircraft-rated stormwater inlet drainage structures. 
  

b. Design of erosion and sediment control devices. 
 

c. Review original design plans for existing pavement thickness within the project limits and 
compare with pavement thickness from proposed geotechnical borings. 
 

d. Complete necessary site surveying to determine existing pipe sizes and inverts. Survey is 
not required to be in accordance with FAA AC 150/5300-18B and related advisory 
circulars. 

 
e. Provide recommendations for construction phasing to the sponsor and airline tenants for 

their review. 
 

f. Prepare preliminary engineering report. 
 

g. Meet with Sponsor/FAA to review project after preliminary engineering report submittal, 
and at 60 percent and 90 percent completion (3 meetings). 
 

h. Complete estimates of probable construction costs for the recommended alternatives. 
 

i. Solicit comments on preliminary design from airport personnel and FAA. 
 
PHASE 04 – Final Design 
 

a. Incorporate preliminary design comments and respond as necessary to requests for 
additional information. 
 

b. Provide final design drawings, specifications, and final estimate of probable construction 
costs and schedule for the project. 
 

c. Develop specifications using FAA AC 150/5370-10, "Standards for Specifying Construction 
of Airports," as amended, and utilize standard provisions supplied by the sponsor, as 
necessary. 
 

d. Development of construction safety and phasing plan in accordance with FAA AC 
150/5370-2, "Operational Safety on Airports during Construction." 
 

60

Item 12.



Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc. 
Work Authorization 2119-2402 

4 

e. Design all improvements in accordance with FAA standards and guidelines. 
 

f. Provide for all required design of utilities and services within the area defined in the 
preliminary design. 
 

g. Complete final quantity calculations. 
 

h. Complete final engineer's report for the project. This report will detail all data utilized in 
the design of the project. The final design report will discuss any/all assumptions made 
during the design. This shall include the following: Stormwater system survey, final plans, 
estimates of probable construction costs, and phasing/scheduling recommendations. 
 

i. Solicit sponsor and FAA approval. 
 

j. Complete and submit 7460 applications through FAA OEAAA website. 
 

k. Submit project to local and state permitting agencies. 
 

l. Assist airport with advertising and interpretation of project requirements. 
 

m. Assist airport with preparation of the project application to FAA. 
 

n. Deliverables - Engineer will provide interim design submittals at 60 percent, 90 percent 
and 100 percent design completion phases. Deliverables for the 60 percent and 90 
percent phases will consist of plan sheets, technical specifications, itemized construction 
cost estimate, and preliminary Engineer’s Report – electronic copy: PDF format. Paper 
copy: bond full-size for plan sheets. Deliverables for the 100 percent phase will consist of 
plan sheets, technical specifications, itemized construction cost estimate, and final 
Engineer’s Report. 
 
 

PHASE 05 – Bidding 
a. Coordinate schedule and advertisement with Sponsor and FAA. 

 
b. Distribute plans/specifications to bidders, plan rooms, and funding agencies. 

 
c. Conduct the pre-bid meeting. 

 
d. Respond to contractor Requests for Information. 

 

61

Item 12.



Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc. 
Work Authorization 2119-2402 

5 

e. Prepare addenda based off pre-bid meeting and bidders’ questions. 
 

f. Beaufort County will conduct the bid opening per standard practices. 
 

g. Prepare and distribute the bid tabulation. 
 

h. Review bids. Coordinate with FAA Civil Rights on DBE participation. 
 

i. Send recommendation of contract award to Sponsor. 
 

j. Assist Sponsor with grant application. 
 

k. Deliverables - Engineer will provide bid tabulation of bids received, and submittal of DBE 
participation proposed by low responsive bidder to FAA Civil Rights for review and 
concurrence by the FAA. Upon receipt of written approval of DBE Participation Letter 
from FAA Civil Rights, Engineer will provide written summary of bids received and 
construction contract award recommendation for consideration by the Owner. 
 
 

PHASE 06 – Construction Administration 
 

a. Basic Services 
 
Construction Phase 
The construction phase services for this project includes preparation and distribution of 
contract documents and Released For Construction plans and specifications to the 
Contractor, coordinating and conducting the Preconstruction Conference meeting and 
preparation of minutes, review of project schedule submitted by Contractor, coordination 
and review of Contractor submittals, Construction visits/Progress Meetings outlines and 
meeting minutes, review field change requests and related correspondence, prepare and 
distribute general construction correspondence throughout the project, review quality 
acceptance test results, review and process Contractor pay requests, conduct a Final 
Inspection and prepare/distribute punch list items letter, develop record drawings, assist 
Hilton Head Island Airport with Grant Closeout and prepare Grant closeout paperwork. 
 
The intended deliverables for these services shall include: 
 
• PDF versions of Released For Construction (RFC) plans and specifications. 
• PDF versions of record drawing plan sheets and specifications. 
• PDF version of final Engineer’s Report 

 

62

Item 12.



Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc. 
Work Authorization 2119-2402 

6 

b. Special Services 
 
Task 1 - Resident Project Representative  
A full-time resident project representative will be provided to observe the construction 
and other responsibilities. 
 
Task 2 - Quality Assurance Testing  
Quality assurance and acceptance testing required by the project specifications for this 
project will be provided. Reports of the tests performed will be provided, along with a 
summary of all tests performed at project closeout. 

 
Task 3 - As-Built Survey  
An as-built survey for this project will be provided. 

 
Estimated Time Schedule: Work shall be completed in accordance with the schedule established 
and agreed upon by the Owner and Engineer. 

Cost of Services:  The method of payment shall be in accordance with Article 6 – Compensation 
of the contract. The work shall be performed in accordance with the Master Contract as a lump 
sum of $85,856.00, which includes reimbursable expenses. Special services shall be performed 
on a not to exceed basis with a budget of $64,098.00. For a total of $149,954.00 (Appendix B, 
page 16). 

Design and Bidding $149,954.00 
Construction Administration $270,400.75 
TOTAL $420,354.75 

 

NOTE: THE SCOPE AND BUDGET PROVIDED IS FOR THE ENTIRE PROGRAM; HOWEVER, THIS 
WORK AUTHORIZATION IS ON FOR THE DESIGN AND BIDDING OF THE PROJECT. 

  

63

Item 12.



Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc. 
Work Authorization 2119-2402 

7 

Agreed as to Scope of Services, Time Schedule, and Budget: 
 
 
APPROVED: 
BEAUFORT COUNTY 

 APPROVED: 
TALBERT, BRIGHT & ELLINGTON, INC. 

 
 

  

 
 

  
Vice President 

Title  Title: 
 
 

  

Date:  Date: 
 
 

  

Witness:  Witness: 
 

  

64

Item 12.



Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc. 
Work Authorization 2119-2402 

8 

APPENDIX A SCHEMATIC 

 

65

Item 12.



Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc. 
Work Authorization 2119-2402 

9 66

Item 12.



Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc. 
Work Authorization 2119-2402 

10 67

Item 12.



Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc. 
Work Authorization 2119-2402 

11 68

Item 12.



Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc. 
Work Authorization 2119-2402 

12 69

Item 12.



Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc. 
Work Authorization 2119-2402 

13 70

Item 12.



Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc. 
Work Authorization 2119-2402 

14 

  

71

Item 12.



Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc. 
Work Authorization 2119-2402 

15 

APPENDIX B FEE PROPOSAL 

 

72

Item 12.



Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc. 
Work Authorization 2119-2402 

16 73

Item 12.



Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc. 
Work Authorization 2119-2402 

17 74

Item 12.



Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc. 
Work Authorization 2119-2402 

18 75

Item 12.



Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc. 
Work Authorization 2119-2402 

19 76

Item 12.



Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc. 
Work Authorization 2119-2402 

20 77

Item 12.



Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc. 
Work Authorization 2119-2402 

21 78

Item 12.



Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc. 
Work Authorization 2119-2402 

22 79

Item 12.



Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc. 
Work Authorization 2119-2402 

23 

 

80

Item 12.



 

AIRPORT IFE SERVICES, INC. 

115 Blevins Road 

Roan Mountain, TN 37687 

801-560-6877 
AIRPORTIFE.COM 

 
 
 

 
May 28, 2024 
Jon Rembold C.M.  – Airport Director 
Hilton Head Island Airport 
120 Beach City Rd 
Hilton Head Island, SC  29926 
 

 

RE:  Hilton Head Island Airport 
       Drainage Structure Improvements Project 
       Design, Bidding and Construction Phase  Services 
       Independent Fee Estimate (IFE) Proposal  
  
          

Dear Mr. Rembold: 
 
I have reviewed the project scope of work (SOW) for professional services for the above referenced 
project which I received today May 28, 2024. 

Airport IFE Services, Inc. can complete the Hilton Head Island Airport’s IFE consisting of Design, Bidding 
and Construction Phase Services as shown in the Scope of Work for a lump sum of $2,500.00. Completion 
will be on or before six working days from when the notice to proceed is given. 

In addition to the review, I include in my lump sum services to be available during or after the 
consultant negotiations, to review any items which might need additional attention. We do not 
invoice until our IFE information meets your needs and the funding agencies’ approvals. 

Airport IFE Services, Inc. thanks you for the opportunity to submit our IFE proposal to assist the Hilton 
Head  Island Airport.  I am available at 801-560-6877 or LewLott@AirportIFE.com if you have any 
questions.  

I look forward to hearing from you. 

Sincerely, 
AIRPORT IFE SERVICES, INC. 
 

Lewis J Lott 
 
Lewis J Lott, P.E. 
 

81

Item 12.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

             ITEM TITLE: 

              Recommendation to Award Consor Engineers, LLC the design contract for Paukie Island Causeway    
Culvert Replacement ($187,002.48)          

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Public Facilities and Safety Committee – June 24, 2024 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Bryan Bauer, PE – Interim Director of Engineering (5 mins) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

In 2022, the causeway leading to Paukie Island, Paukie Island Rd, began to show signs of distress due 
to crossline culverts. Repairs were made to the roadway in late 2022 and early 2023. The roadway 
began to show signs of distress again in 2024. As a preventative and temporary measure, a steel plate 
has been placed on the roadway to maintain vehicular access while a long-term solution is developed.  

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

Consor Engineers, LLC is one of the firms awarded the Beaufort County Transportation Engineering 
Consultants On-Call RFQ#051922E and were asked to provide a scope and fee for the design of the 
culvert replacement.  

FISCAL IMPACT:  

The contract fee is $162,610.85. Staff recommends a 15% contingency of $24,391.63, bringing the 
project budget to $187,002.48. The funding for this project is Road Use Fee (TAG) Professional 
Services  – account 2342-30-0000-51160 with a balance of $1,357,820.73.    

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends approval of award to Consor Engineers, LLC for the design contract for the Paukie 
Island Causeway Culvert Replacement. 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve/deny recommendation of award to Consor Engineers, LLC for the design contract 
for the Paukie Island Causeway Culvert Replacement. 

Next Step: Move forward with contracting with Consor Engineers, LLC as the award amount does not 
require County Council approval.  

 

82

Item 13.



 

Consor Engineers, LLC · 3900 Leeds Avenue, Suite 103, North Charleston, SC 29405 · P: 888.451.6822  · 

www.consoreng.com 

 

June 7, 2024 

 

Bryan Bauer, PE 

Transportation Construction Manager  

Beaufort County   

 

Re: Scope and Fee Proposal – Paukie Island Causeway Culvert Replacement 

 

Dear Mr. Bauer: 

Consor Engineers, LLC (Consor) is pleased to present this proposal for Design Services for the Paukie 

Island Causeway Culvert Replacement in Beaufort, SC.  We are excited about this new opportunity and 

ready to deliver timely services for this project.  Consor has reviewed the project, developed a scope of 

work, and have estimated the cost for the requested scope of services.  The Scope of Work and Estimate 

of Cost are included herein for your review.  We look forward to hearing from you. 

 

Sincerely, 

Joshua Gray, PE, CCM, PMP  

Vice President  

Consor Engineers, LLC 

 

   

  

83

Item 13.



 

Consor Engineers, LLC · 3900 Leeds Avenue, Suite 103, North Charleston, SC 29405 · P: 888.451.6822  · 

www.consoreng.com 

PROJECT SUMMARY  

Paukie Island Road causeway has failing corrugated metal pipes (CMP) that have caused settlement of 

the road.  The two 48” CMPs must be replaced to stabilize the roadway and maintain access to the 

island.  Consor will perform the following tasks to develop design plans for the construction of the 

culvert replacement on the causeway.   

SCOPE OF SERVICES  

The scope of this project is to replace the dual culverts along the Paukie Island Causeway as listed above.  

The design will include all temporary traffic design needed for construction of the project.  Construction 

of a single lane to bypass the work area on the existing causeway is anticipated to be implemented.  

Causeway lanes to be replaced in kind.  The replacement culvert is proposed to be a box culvert with 

end walls.  The current causeway is narrow, so the typical section may need to be revised to match field 

conditions.  Plan development will follow SCDOT standards where applicable.  Additional clarifications 

and assumptions are as follows: 

• Short-term Operations Support: Consor will provide engineering and construction support 

services for a short-term fix of the roadway settlement, should the need arise and as requested 

by the County’s staff.  Hours for principal and project manager consultations are included in the 

cost of Preliminary Engineering. 

• Survey:  Consor will collect survey information, including wetlands delineation.  Survey 

information for property plats is not required.  Survey limits are proposed as 200 feet along the 

road either side of the culverts, and 30 to 50 feet out from centerline of road. 

• Hydraulics: 

o Includes a hydraulic analysis of culvert discharges during tidal inflow and outflow with 

respect to headwater and tailwater differential, discharge velocity and scour with the 

goal of providing acceptable rates of discharge and protection against scour at the 

culvert ends. 

o  A search of the FEMA Map Service Center (MSC) website and the Flood Insurance Study 

(FIS) report did not indicate a hydraulic model was prepared for the area between 

Paukie Island and Beaufort.  Unless specifically requested we do not propose a hydraulic 

model (HEC-RAS) that would normally be used on roadways crossing waterways.   

o Research of tidal data to determine rates of rise and fall for a tidal hydrograph 

o Estimate the tidal prism 

o Calculate the theoretical culvert capacity advantageous to the rates of tidal rise and fall 

with respect to head differential and discharge velocity 

o Evaluate up to three size alternatives beginning with a box culvert that most closely 

matches the flow area of the existing culverts 

o Calculate theoretical scour and design countermeasures 

o Prepare draft and final reports and documentation per the SCDOT Requirements for 

Hydraulic Design Studies 

o Provide hydraulic support during preparation of construction documents 

• Geotechnical:  Assessment of current conditions under culverts and recommendations for long-

term stability.  Two borings, one near each end of the existing culverts.  Geotechnical Report 

84

Item 13.



 

Consor Engineers, LLC · 3900 Leeds Avenue, Suite 103, North Charleston, SC 29405 · P: 888.451.6822  · 

www.consoreng.com 

with engineering recommendations for structural bearing and slope stability.  Traffic control will 

be provided during drilling operations. 

• Structural:  Design of deep foundation to support the new culvert, if determined necessary by 

the geotechnical engineer.  Design of headers, wingwalls and cut-off walls for the precast 

concrete culvert.  

• Submissions: 30% and 100% submissions will include a .pdf.  Final submission will include a .pdf 

and CAD file of the design plans. 

• Maintenance of Traffic:  Use of a single lane detour/bypass to be implemented during 

construction.   

• Utility Coordination:  Will be provided to ensure any impacts are identified and addressed prior 

to construction.  Relocation and temporary support design to be provided by utilities. 

• SUE Services:  None anticipated. 

• Engineer’s Estimate:  An engineer’s estimate will be provided at each stage of design 

submission.  Pay items will follow SCDOT format except when a special provision or City specific 

item is used. 

• Environmental Studies and Permitting:  See attached scope from Three Oaks Engineering.  

• Right of Way Services: None needed as Causeway is within County R/W.    

  

85

Item 13.



 

Consor Engineers, LLC · 3900 Leeds Avenue, Suite 103, North Charleston, SC 29405 · P: 888.451.6822  · 

www.consoreng.com 

PROJECT SCHEDULE  

Based on a June 24th Notice to Proceed (NTP). Assumes fourteen (14) day City review turnaround times 

and up to two (2) plans submissions required. 

» June 24, 2024: NTP/Kick-Off Meeting 

» October 9, 2024: Submission 1 – 30% Preliminary Design  

» October 23, 2024: Review Comments from County  

» February 5, 2025: Submission 2 – 100% Final Design  

» February 19, 2025: Review Comments from County 

» March 5, 2025: Final Submittal 

 

FEE ESTIMATE  

The fee for Consor’s performance of the tasks listed in the Scope of Services is $162,610.85.   

 

A detailed manhour estimate is attached to this proposal, along with a breakdown of the environmental 

documentation and permitting costs.  Direct cost expenses such as copies, prints, postage, vehicle 

mileage, next-day mail, and hand-delivery of materials are shown in the estimated fee for professional 

services.  

 

ASSUMPTIONS  

1. Surrounding causeway backfill is in good condition, functional, and does not require replacement.  

2. Temporary bypass road to be designed for a 15 MPH Design Speed.  

3. Right-of-Way acquisition is not anticipated.  

4. County will complete submittal reviews within 2 weeks.  

5. 70% submittal is not required, as R/W acquisition is not anticipated.  

6. SUE, if determined to be needed, may be provided at additional cost.  

7. Striping is not currently present and will not be required for the design.  

 

 

 

86

Item 13.



 

 

     Three Oaks Engineering, Inc. 

1022 State Street, Building 2 

Cayce, SC 29033 

  

 

Scope of Work 
Paukie Island Causeway Culvert Replacement 

May 22, 2024 

 

Beaufort County (County) is proposing to replace the existing culvert on Paukie Island Road. The project study area 

(PSA) includes an area approximately 400 feet along Paukie Island Road and 200 feet wide centered on the existing 

culvert. Consor Engineers (Consor) has requested that Three Oaks Engineering, Inc. (Three Oaks) provide 

environmental review and permitting in support of the project. The project is locally funded; therefore, US Army 

Corps of Engineers (USACE) will be the lead federal agency.  

 

Three Oaks work on the project will generally include the following tasks: 

 

1.0 ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW & DOCUMENTATION 

1.1 Environmental Project Management 

- Three Oaks staff (2 staff) will participate in up to four (4) project coordination meetings with Consor 

and the County and will coordinate with Consor design staff as needed to understand the proposed 

project design, construction, and impacts. 

- Three Oaks will provide monthly progress reports and invoicing for the duration of the project. 

1.2 Field Surveys & Documentation  

Prior to commencing design and/or environmental activities, Three Oaks will: 

- Establish Study Area: Three Oaks will define the proposed study area to be utilized during the 

environmental analysis and review, in coordination with the County and Consor to ensure that the 

study area encompasses proposed design alternatives and potential construction limits. 

- Jurisdictional Wetlands and Waters of the U.S. (WOUS): As required by the presence of WOUS, the 

Three Oaks will delineate WOUS utilizing the three-parameter approach (hydric soils, hydrophytic 

vegetation and wetland hydrology) set forth in the 1987 US Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) Wetland 

Delineation Manual. Three Oaks will identify and mark wetland boundaries with sequentially numbered 

flags in the field. Sub-meter GPS coordinates will be collected for all wetland boundaries and stream 

locations. Data required to complete the USACE Atlantic and Gulf Coastal Plain Data Forms will be 

collected for wetlands within the PSA. Three Oaks will also flag the limits of state-designated critical 

area in the PSA. Three Oaks will provide a list and mapping of flags and GPS data to Consor for use by 

the surveyors. 

- Preliminary Jurisdictional Determination Package: Three Oaks will prepare a Request for Corps 

Jurisdictional Determination (JD) package including the required site information, maps, and data 

forms. The PJD package will be submitted with the permit application. 

87

Item 13.



 

2 | P a g e  

 

- Protected Species: There are several federal and state protected species listed for the PSA. Concurrent 

with field delineations, Three Oaks will review the PSA for the presence of suitable habitat for listed 

species and determine the potential effects of the project on each species. Three Oaks will prepare the 

following documentation for inclusion with permit applications: 

o Biological Assessment (BA) for US Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS): Three Oaks will prepare a 

BA federally listed threatened or endangered species/habitat in compliance with Section 7 of the 

Endangered Species Act. The report will include a description of the proposed action, description of 

species and habitat that may occur in the project area, field survey methods and observations, 

effects analysis, and determination of effect on federally listed species. Any concessions in either 

the scope of work or construction activities or mitigation measures included in the BA will require 

prior County approval.  

o Biological Assessment for National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA) National 

Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS): Three Oaks will prepare a separate biological assessment for 

species under the jurisdiction of NMFS using their Expedited Informal Consultation report 

format. This document will be submitted with the Section 404 permit application. 

o State-listed Species Memo: Three Oaks will prepare a memo summarizing potential project 

effects on state recognized rare, threatened, or endangered species and habitat in the PSA for 

inclusion with permit submittals to SCDHEC.  

o Essential Fish Habitat (EFH) Assessment: Concurrent with other field work, Three Oaks will 

complete a field evaluation for EFH, as defined by the Magnuson-Stevens Fisheries 

Conservation and Management Act, a full EFH assessment will be prepared. The EFH 

assessment will include the following: anticipated construction methods and access, existing 

impacts to be removed, detailed description and mapping of habitat present and the quality 

and functions of habitat, analysis of potential adverse effects of the project on EFH and 

managed species, including quantification of impacts, and avoidance, minimization, and 

mitigation measures.  

o Cultural Resources: Three Oaks will prepare a memo documenting known resources in the 

vicinity of the PSA for compliance with Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act of 

1966. It is assumed that since the area surrounding the project has been previously disturbed 

for construction of the existing causeway that there are no intact resources present and no 

archaeological surveys will be required. 

Assumptions:  

- Field surveys for the project will be completed in one (1) 10-hour day (3 staff); two (2) additional site 

visits (2 staff) are included for supplemental data collection and/or potential on-site meeting(s) with 

agency representatives. 

- Consor will be responsible for coordinating a licensed surveyor to develop and submit a Critical Area 

Plat, in accordance with SCDHEC OCRM requirements. Three Oaks will review the draft plat and provide 

input as needed. 

- Formal consultation with USFWS and/or NMFS will not be required. If formal consultation is required, 

USACE will initiate and handle. 

- Archaeological surveys will not be required. 

 

 

 

 

88

Item 13.



 

3 | P a g e  

 

2.0 ENVIRONMENTAL PERMITTING 

 

Three Oaks will be responsible for securing permits/certifications involved with acquiring an approved USACE 

permit to include but not limited to SCDHEC-OCRM Coastal Zone Consistency (CZC), Critical Area Permit, and 

Section 401 Water Quality Certification. In the completed application, Three Oaks will document all proposed 

impacts to WOUS. At its discretion, the County will execute the Joint State and Federal Application form as the 

applicant and will designate Three Oaks as the County’s agent in the processing of the permit application for the 

subject project and in furnishing supplemental information in support of the application. The USACE Section 

404(b)(1) Guidelines will be utilized to prepare the Section 404 permit application and will include a review of the 

Public Interest Review Factors. 

 

A Clean Water Act Section 404/401 Nationwide Permit (NWP) and an SCDHEC-OCRM critical area permit are 

anticipated. 

 

- Permit Application: Three Oaks shall prepare the 404/401 permit application in the format specified by 

the Charleston District Corps of Engineer and include attachments as appropriate to facilitate USACE 

review of the application. 

- Preparation of Drawings and Maps - As part of the Clean Water Act Section 404/401 permit application 

package, Three Oaks will prepare and submit drawings depicting the proposed jurisdictional impacts to 

waters of the U.S. including the surveyed or measured boundaries of jurisdictional waters to establish 

the proposed jurisdictional impacts. 

- USACE Pre-Application Meeting:  If deemed necessary by the County, Three Oaks and the County will 

meet with USACE prior to submittal of a permit application. The meeting will be scheduled by Three 

Oaks and will be used to ensure the permit application is complete. Three Oaks will address all 

deficiencies in the application prior to permit submittal to USACE.  

- Negotiations and Permit Acquisition: If deemed necessary by the County, Three Oaks will work with 

federal, state, and local representatives throughout the course of the permit application process and 

coordinate the submission of any additional information as requested by the respective agencies in 

order to facilitate permit acquisition.  

- Environmental Compliance: Three Oaks will develop a commitment tracking system to ensure that all 

environmental commitments, permit stipulations, and other constraints are incorporated into the 

design, plans, and specifications. The commitment tracking system shall be delivered with Final 

Construction Plans. 

- Compensatory Mitigation: In accordance with regulatory requirements, Three Oaks will develop a 

conceptual mitigation plan and submit it as part of the application package. It is assumed that the 

County will provide mitigation by purchasing credits from an approved mitigation bank. 

 

Assumptions:  

- The County will be responsible for any and all permit fees, mitigation fees, etc. 

 

3.0 Public Involvement 

Three Oaks will be responsible for coordinating public involvement activities associated with the project with the 

County. 

 

- Public Involvement Plan: Three Oaks will develop a public involvement plan (PIP) to outline project 

stakeholders, proposed public involvement activities, and the schedule for public involvement 

89

Item 13.



 

4 | P a g e  

 

associated with the project. Three Oaks will develop a project mailing list to include stakeholders, 

residents, and property owners. The PIP will be submitted to the County for review and approval. 

- Public Information Meeting Coordination: It is assumed that there will be one (1) in-person public 

information meeting for the project. Three Oaks will coordinate the date and location of the meeting 

with County personnel and will prepare and publish a newspaper ad for the Public Notice. Two (2) staff 

from Three Oaks will attend and facilitate the public meeting. 

- Public Meeting Materials: Three Oaks will prepare all related public meeting materials, including 

postcard mailers (up to 250), displays (up to 5), handouts, comment forms, and sign-in sheets (100 

copies of each). Three Oaks will provide draft copies of all materials to be used in public meetings to 

the County for review a minimum of 10 business days prior to printing. Postcard mailers (up to 250) 

- Public Information Meeting Responses: Three Oaks will transcribe comments received and prepare 

responses to each comment for the County to review and distribute. Up to 50 responses are assumed. 

Assumptions:  

- The County will pay any fees associated with venue rental for the public meeting. 

- The County will arrange for meeting security, if deemed necessary. 

 

90

Item 13.



Task # Description Unit/Hours Unit Cost Fee

1 Paukie Island - Preliminary Design

Principal 8 250.00$        2,000.00$                 

Project Manager 40 215.00$        8,600.00$                 

Roadway Engineer 52 155.00$        8,060.00$                 

Roadway Design Technician 36 112.00$        4,032.00$                 

Utility Coordinator (Design Technician) 10 120.00$        1,200.00$                 

Structural Engineer 26 180.00$        4,680.00$                 

Senior Hydraulics Engineer 40 190.00$        7,600.00$                 

Consor  Labor Subtotal 36,172.00$               

Nonlabor

Mileage 380 0.67$            254.60$                    

Subconsultants

Survey 1 10,000.00$  10,000.00$               

SUE 1 -$              -$                           

Geotech 1 17,600.00$  17,600.00$               

Environmental & Permitting 1 54,124.05$  54,124.05$               

Task 1 Total 118,150.65$             

2 Paukie Island - Final Design

Principal 2 250.00$        500.00$                    

Project Manager 42 215.00$        9,030.00$                 

Roadway Engineer 68 155.00$        10,540.00$               

Roadway Design Technician 36 112.00$        4,032.00$                 

Utility Coordinator (Design Technician) 8 120.00$        960.00$                    

Structural Engineer 26 180.00$        4,680.00$                 

Senior Hydraulics Engineer 24 190.00$        4,560.00$                 

Consor Labor Subtotal 34,302.00$               

Nonlabor

Mileage 260 0.67$            174.20$                    

Task 2 Total 34,476.20$               

3 Construction Phase Services

Principal 12 250.00$        3,000.00$                 

Project Manager 30 215.00$        6,450.00$                 

Roadway Engineer 2 155.00$        310.00$                    

Roadway Design Technician 2 112.00$        224.00$                    

Structural Engineer 4 180.00$        720.00$                    

Consor Subtotal 9,984.00$                 

Task  3 Total 9,984.00$                 

TOTAL COST 162,610.85$             

Assumptions

1. Creek is within County R/W.  No R/W to be acquired or R/W plans needed.

2. County will complete submittal reviews within 2 weeks.

3. SUE services not to be performed due to utilities known to be present.

4. Two (2) Plan Submittals total: Preliminary and RFC.

Paukie Island Causeway Culvert Replacement

Estimate of Cost

91

Item 13.



Project Description/Location:

Client:

Prepared By/Date: Three Oaks 06/05/24

Hours by Classification

Direct Labor Estimate:
Principal/Sr 

PM

Sr Env 

Scientist
Env Scientist

Jr Env 

Scientist

Permitting 

Specialist
Planner

GIS 

Technician
Total

1.0 Environmental Review & Documentation 9 26 52 46 45 6 24 208

1.1 Environmental Project Management -

    Meetings & Coordination 4 6 4 12 26

      Monthy progress reporting 4 4 8

1.2 Field Surveys & Documentation -

      Establish Study Area 1 1 2 4

      Jurisdictional Wetlands and WOUS Delineation (inc critical area) [3 staff @ 10 hrs 

plus prep)
12 10 14 36

      Preliminary Jurisdictional Determination Package 2 4 4 4 14

      Biological Assessment for USFWS 2 8 12 4 26

      Biological Assessment for NMFS 6 16 8 8 38

      State-listed Species Memo 1 4 2 7

      Cultural Resources 1 2 6 9

Additional site visits (2 x 2 staff) 8 8 8 8 32

Critical Area Plat (needs to be surveyed and signed by a PLS) 4 4 8

2.0 Environmental Permitting 3 24 0 10 68 0 10 115

Permit Applications (NWP inc 404(b)(1) and public interest factors; critical area permit) 2 8 6 40 4 60

Drawings and Maps 2 4 6 12

Pre-Application Meeting 8 8 16

Negotiations & Permit Acquisition 1 4 6 11

Environmental Compliance commitment tracking 2 4 6

Compensatory Mitigation 2 2 6 10

3.0 Public Involvement 12 0 0 0 8 30 0 50

Public Involvement Plan 2 8 10

Public Information Meeting Coordination (inc meeting attendance) 8 8 4 20

Public Meeting Materials 2 18 20

Public Meeting Responses 2 4 6

Hour Totals:  24 50 52 56 121 36 34 373

Hourly Rate:   $200.00 $175.00 $125.00 $105.00 $145.00 $125.00 $105.00

Direct Labor:   $4,800 $8,750 $6,500 $5,880 $17,545 $4,500 $3,570

Direct Expenses Estimate:

UNITS UNIT COST

1,940 0.670$            

11 51.75              

Postcards 250 1.00                250.00            

Public Meeting materials

      Handouts, comment forms, sign-in sheets 400 0.40                160.00            $51,545.00

      Display boards 5 60.00              300.00            

2,579.05$                      

-                  54,124.05$                    

Paukie Island Causeway Culvert Replacement

Beaufort County (Consor)

ITEM COST FEE SUMMARY

Travel (mileage), per vehicle-mile 1,299.80$                                  

Labor Total

Per Diem without Overnight Stay 569.25                                       

-                                             

-                                             

Expenses

-                                             TOTAL:

92

Item 13.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Recommendation to approve Signal Maintenance Agreement between Beaufort County and SCDOT. 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Public Facilities and Safety Committee – June 24, 2024 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Bryan Bauer, PE – Interim Director of Engineering (5 mins) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

Beaufort County has historically maintained SCDOT-owned traffic signals and school zone flashers under an 
existing Signal Maintenance Agreement (SMA). The terms of the SMA are executed in three-year terms with 
financial terms updated annually. The financial reimbursement included in the agreement is for costs 
associated with maintaining the operations of the signals. 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

Beaufort County maintains forty-three (43) traffic signals and seven (7) school zone flashers for SCDOT. The 
current SMA expired in March of 2024. The new SMA will be from April 1, 2024, to March 31, 2027.   

FISCAL IMPACT:  

The SMA allows for reimbursement from SCDOT to Beaufort County, not exceeding $197,700 annually. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends approval of the Signal Maintenance Agreement between Beaufort County and SCDOT. 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve/deny recommendation of approval of the Signal Maintenance Agreement between 
Beaufort County and SCDOT. 

Next Step: Move forward with executing the Signal Maintenance Agreement between Beaufort County and 
SCDOT.  

 

93

Item 14.



94

Item 14.



95

Item 14.



96

Item 14.



97

Item 14.



98

Item 14.



99

Item 14.



100

Item 14.



101

Item 14.



102

Item 14.



103

Item 14.



104

Item 14.



105

Item 14.



106

Item 14.



107

Item 14.



108

Item 14.



109

Item 14.



110

Item 14.



111

Item 14.



112

Item 14.



113

Item 14.



114

Item 14.



115

Item 14.



116

Item 14.



117

Item 14.



118

Item 14.



119

Item 14.



120

Item 14.



121

Item 14.



122

Item 14.



123

Item 14.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 
 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Recommend Approval of Contract Award to Beaufort Metal of Beaufort, SC for RFP # 032624 Scrap Metal and 
White Goods , Processing, Recycling, and Marketing ($0.00) 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Public Facilities and Safety Committee – May 28, 2024 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jared Fralix, P.E. - Assistant County Administrator - Engineering 
Dave Wilhelm, P.E. - Public Works Director (backup) 
5 minutes 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

A total of three (3) bids were received on March 26, 2024. The County Purchasing Department and County staff 
interviewed two (2) of the bidders. After evaluation of the bids, the project team recommends an award to 
Beaufort Metal.  

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

Scrap Metal and White Goods Processing, Recycling, and Marketing – The scope of this contract is for a vendor 
to provide metal recycling services for Beaufort County convenience centers. The vendor will process materials 
hauled from convenience centers to recycling center and sell the metal to the recycling market. The revenue 
share will be 70% to the County. 
The anticipated tonnage is ~1,720.05 with an estimated revenue of ~$250,000.  
 
Purchasing has not submitted a draft contract to Legal. This will occur after contract award.  

FISCAL IMPACT:  

This is a unit rate contract. Revenue received will exceed the cost of services.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends approval of the contract to Beaufort Metal of Beaufort, SC for RFP # 032624 Scrap Metal and 
White Goods Processing, and Marketing.    

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve /deny the contract award to Beaufort Metal for RFP # 032624 Scrap Metal and White 
Goods Hauling, Recycling and Marketing for the Beaufort County Convenience Centers.  

(Next Step – Move forward to Council for Approval on June 10, 2024.) 

 

124

Item 15.


	Top
	Item 5.	APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	05.28.2024

	Item 8.	RESOLUTION SC RIA Grant Alljoy Project
	AIS - RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE INTERIM COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR TO ACCEPT AN INFRASTRUCTURE PLANNING GRANT FROM THE SOUTH CAROLINA RURAL INFRAS
	RESOLUTION - RIA GRANT Doc.
	SC Rural Infrastructure Authority - Grant Approval for $187,500.00-Alljoy Drainage Project
	RIA SC - Alljoy Drainage Study Grant Award_1
	RoadClass+ ALLJOY
	AlljoyDEMMap

	Item 9.	Resolution Authorizing Sheppard Road Condemnation
	AIS Sheppard Rd, Causey Way, Dock Builder Dr updated 5-22-24
	Location Map Parcel R200 011 000 0007 0000
	Resolution-Sheppard Rd, Causey Way, Dock Builder Dr Condemnation updated 4-16-24
	D Bartholomew Sheppard Rd.

	Item 10.	RESOLUTION 2021 BIL Grant Acceptance HHI Airport
	AIS - BIL ATP Grant Acceptance
	Resolution - BIL ATP Grant Acceptance
	SF 424 - BIL ATP 20240531

	Item 11.	RESOLUTION Grant Acceptance - Taxiway F Pavement
	AIS - Taxiway F Rehab Grant Acceptance (2401)
	Resolution - Taxiway F Rehab Grant Acceptance
	SF424-ARP-2023-07-13 UPDATED 05.22.24 (Taxiway 2401)

	Item 12.	RESOLUTION Grant HDX Airfield Drainage
	AIS - Airfield Drainage Grant Acceptance (2405)
	Resolution - Airfield Drainage Grant Acceptance
	SF424 3-45-0030-XXX-2024 - Airfield Drainage 20240603 (2405)

	Item 13.	Design Contract Award - Paukie Island Causeway
	Agenda Item Summary - Public Facilities 06242024 Paukie Island CUlvert Replacement
	Paukie Island Proposal

	Item 14.	SCDOT Signal Maintenance Agreement
	Agenda Item Summary - Public Facilities 06242024 Signal Maintenance Agreement with SCDOT
	2024 Signal MAintenance Agreement

	Item 15.	Contract Award - White Goods Bulky Metal Recycling
	AIS - White Goods  Bulky metals 6.13.24 VH

	Bottom

